
1

CITY O F B A RA B O O CO M M O N CO UN CIL A GE N D A
C ouncilC hambers,101SouthB lvd.,B araboo,W isconsin

Tuesday,February25,2020,7:00P .M .

Regularmeetingof theC ityof B araboo C ommon C ouncil,M ayorM ikeP alm presiding.
N oticesSent To CouncilM embers: W edekind,Kolb,P lautz,Kent,P etty,E llington,A lt,Kierzek,andThurow.
N oticesSent To C ityStaff,M edia A ndO therInterestedP arties: A dmin.D ow ning,A tty.Truman,C D A D ir.C annon,
C lerkZ eman,D P W D ir./E ngineerP inion,FinanceD ir.H aggard,FireC hief Stieve,L ibraryD ir.B ergin,P arks& Rec.
D ir.H ardy,P oliceC hief Schauf,Street Super.Gilman,UtilitySuper.P eterson,TreasurerL aux ,theB araboo N ew s
Republic,W B D L ,99.7FM ,C itizen A genda Group,M edia A genda Group

1.C A L L TO O RD E R.

2.RO L L C A L L A N D P L E D GE O F A L L E GIA N C E .

3.A P P RO V A L O F P RE V IO US M IN UTE S.(Voice Vote): February11,2020

4.A P P RO V A L O F A GE N D A .(Voice Vote)

5.C O M P L IA N C E W ITH O P E N M E E TIN G L A W N O TE D .

6.P RE SE N TA TIO N S –None Scheduled

7.P UB L IC H E A RIN GS –None Scheduled

8.P UB L IC IN V ITE D TO SP E A K.(Any citizen has the right to speak on any item of business that is on the agenda for Council
action if recognized by the presiding officer.)

9.M A Y O R'S B USIN E SS -

 TheM ayorw ould liketo congratulateand thank A lderperson John A lt forall hisw ork serving on the
C ommon C ouncil;thisisJohn’slast meeting.Thankyou John!

10.C O N SE N T A GE N D A (Roll Call)
C A -1… A pprovetheaccountspayableto bepaidin theamount of $_____________

11.O RD IN A N C E S O N 2N D RE A D IN G
N B O -1… A pproveRevisionsto C hapter5,FireD epartment,of theB araboo M unicipalC ode.

N B O -2… A pproveamendingtheO fficialFeeScheduleFireD epartment permit fees.

12.N E W B USIN E SS –RE SO L UTIO N S
N B R-1… A uthorizean increasein session rateto $15 persession fortheB araboo C rossing Guardseffective
M arch 1,2020.

N B R-2… A uthorizeagreementsforthe2020 P ublic W orksC ontractsforasphalt paving,asphalt pavement
materials,asphalt patching,concretecurband sidew alkrepair,crushed aggregatebasecourse,and concreteand
asphalt crushing.

L ow bidsreceivedfrom thefollow ing:
a. D .L .Gasser d. KraemerC ompany
b. A B B S P aving e. A -1E x cavating,Inc.
c. C oncreteServiceC ompany

1 of 74



2

N B R-3… A pprovepurchaseof a new 2020FreightlinerSD 114chassisanda 20202H enderson B ody/Universal
TruckP low E quipment at a combinedcost of $170,479.00.

13.N E W B USIN E SS –O RD IN A N C E S
N B O -1… RepealandrecreateC ityO rdinance§11.07,SolidW asteandRecyclableC ollection.

14.A D M IN ISTRA TO R A N D C O UN C IL CO M M E N TS (Comments are limited to recognition of City residents and
employees, memorials, and non-political community events; discussion of matters related to government business is prohibited.)

15. RE P O RTS,P E TITIO N S,A N D C O RRE SP O N D E N C E TheC ityacknow ledgesreceipt anddistribution of
thefollow ing:

 Reports: January2020FireD ept.& Treasurer
2019A nnualP oliceD ept.

 M inutesfrom theFollowingM eetings:
C opiesof thesemeetingminutesareincludedin yourpacket:
Finance… … … … … … 2-11-2020 UW C ampus… … … … … 1-16-2020
B E D C … … … … … … ..2-6-2020 A dministrative… … … ..2-3-2020
P ublicSafety… … … … 1-27-2020 B D A S… … … … … … ...8-28-2019,
B ID … … … … … … … 2-19-2020 12-4-2019,1-30-2020

C opiesof thesemeetingminutesareon filein theC lerk'soffice:
P FC … … … … … … … .1-20-2020,2-8-2020 L ibrary… … … … … … … .11-18-2019,1-21-2020,

2-10-2020

 P etitionsandC orrespondenceB eingReferred:N one

16.A D JO URN M E N T.(Voice Vote)
B renda Z eman,C ityC lerk

For more information about the City of Baraboo, visit our website at www.cityofbaraboo.com

February 2020

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
23 24 25 26 27 28 29

Public Safety Finance

Council

Ambulance Public Arts

Emergency Mgt.

2 of 74



3

March 2020

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Administrative CDA BEDC

8 9 10 11 12 13 14
Park & Rec Finance

Council

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
SCDC

PFC

Plan

Library

BID UW Campus

22 23 24 25 26 27 28
Finance

Council

Ambulance Public Arts

Emergency Mgt

29 30 31 1 2 3 4
Public Safety

P L E A SE TA KE N O TIC E -A nyperson w ho hasa qualifyingdisabilityasdefined bytheA mericansw ith
D isabilitiesA ct w ho requiresthemeetingormaterialsat themeetingto bein an accessiblelocation orformat should
contact theC ityC lerk at 101South B lvd.,B araboo,W Iorphone(608)355-2700during regularbusinesshoursat
least 48hoursbeforethemeetingso reasonablearrangementscan bemadeto accommodateeach request.

A genda jointlypreparedbyD .M unzandB .Z eman A genda postedon 02/21/2020

3 of 74



City of Baraboo Council Minutes February 11, 2020 Volume 42 Page #438

Council Chambers, Municipal Building, Baraboo, Wisconsin
Tuesday, February 11, 2020 – 7:00 p.m.

Mayor Palm called the regular meeting of Council to order.
Roll call was taken.
Council Members Present: Wedekind, Kolb, Plautz, Kent, Petty, Ellington, Alt, Kierzek, Thurow
Council Members Absent:
Others Present: Lt. LaBroscian, Clerk Zeman, Adm. Downing, Atty. Truman, T. Pinion, K. Stieve,
W. Peterson, Robert Hasse, members of the press and others.

The Pledge of Allegiance was given.

Moved by Kolb, seconded by Wedekind and carried to approve the minutes of January 28, 2020.

Moved by Alt, seconded by Wedekind and carried to approve the agenda.

Compliance with the Open Meeting Law was noted.

PRESENTATIONS – None Scheduled

PUBLIC HEARINGS – None Scheduled

PUBLIC INVITED TO SPEAK

MAYOR’S BUSINESS
 The Mayor congratulated Cale Good, Building & Grounds Maintenance Technician on his

20th anniversary with the City of Baraboo. Congratulations Cale!

CONSENT AGENDA
Resolution No. 19-157

THAT the Accounts Payable, in the amount of $4,388,355.42 as recommended for payment by
the Finance/Personnel Committee, be allowed and ordered paid.

Resolution No. 19-158
THAT the City Clerk be authorized to issue the following Operator’s Licenses:

 Brittney Saxby, Baraboo Burger Company
 Vicki Weyh, Bump’s

Resolution No. 19-159
THAT the City Clerk be authorized to issue the following Conditional Operator’s License:

 Styles Grant, Get N Go

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Alt and carried that the Consent Agenda be approved-9
ayes.

ORDINANCES ON 2ND READING
Moved by Petty, seconded by Ellington and carried unanimously to approve the 2nd reading of
Ordinance No. 2542 approve repealing Planned Development Overlay zoning district that was
approved on October 8, 2019 to convert the existing office building located at 1208 9th Street to

4 of 74



City of Baraboo Council Minutes February 11, 2020 Volume 42 Page #439

a Family Day Care Center and revert the zoning to its original underlying B-3 Highway Oriented
Business zoning classification as requested by Karla and Josh Reinhardt, LC.

NEW BUSINESS - RESOLUTIONS
Resolution No. 19-160

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of
Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the property owner of 908 8th Street is hereby permitted to have a temporary sewer
and water lateral connection with the neighboring property, located at 904 8th Street, until 8th Street
is reconstructed, at which time the proper single parcel connections will be required, and

THAT the City Administrator and City Clerk shall be authorized to execute an agreement
memorializing the above permissions.

Moved by Ellington, seconded by Alt and carried that Resolution No. 19-160 be approved-9
ayes.

Resolution No. 19-161
Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

That the Water Meter Reading Agreement between the City of Baraboo and the Village of West
Baraboo is hereby approved and the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to sign the same.

Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Kolb and carried that Resolution No. 19-161 be
approved-9 ayes.

Resolution No. 19-162
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of

Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin, that:

The Common Council grants a special exemption to Robert Hasse & Elizabeth Hudson
allowing them to keep three dogs in their residence until one of the three dogs passes, after which
time they will be allowed to keep no more than two dogs in their residence. The exemption also
requires Robert & Elizabeth to remain in compliance with §12.12(12) of the Baraboo Municipal
Code for the duration of the time the three dogs are kept in the residence.

Moved by Kolb, seconded by Wedekind and carried that Resolution No. 19-162 be
approved-9 ayes.

Resolution No. 19-163
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of

Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the Common Council hereby adopts the Municipal Building – Meeting Room
Reservation Policy, which shall be in full force and effective on the date of adoption.

Moved by Petty, seconded by Kent and carried that Resolution No. 19-163 be approved-9
ayes.

5 of 74



City of Baraboo Council Minutes February 11, 2020 Volume 42 Page #440

NEW BUSINESS - ORDINANCES
Moved by Wedekind, seconded by Ellington and carried unanimously to approve the 1st reading of
Ordinance No. 2543 amending Chapter 5 of the Baraboo Municipal Code as follows:

5.01 AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE FIRE PROTECTION. (xxxxx) Pursuant to §62.13(8)(a), Wis. Stat.,
the City of Baraboo has established a Fire Department to provide fire prevention and protection services.

5.02 DEFINITIONS. (xxxxx) As used in this Chapter, the following words and terms shall have the
following meanings:

(1) “ATCP” means the Wisconsin Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection.

(2) "Bonfire" means a large, open fire kindled and maintained to mark a public event,
celebration or similar occurrence, which only uses dry, untreated and unpainted wood as the burning
material.

(3) “Burning” mean the kindling or maintaining of a fire that has hot ashes or cinders or is giving heat,
or still glowing or giving light, or a fire that is still smoldering or giving off smoke, or a fire that has not
been completely extinguished.

(4) “Code” means the Municipal Code for the City of Baraboo.

(5) “Fire Chief” means the Fire Chief of the City of Baraboo.

(6) “Fire Department” means the City of Baraboo Fire Department.

(7) "Fire lane" means a part of a public or private parking lot or private driveway or
private road which is designated as a fire lane and designed to provide access for fire trucks to any
building or location and which lanes meet the following minimum specifications:

a. Not less than 24 feet wide at any point.
b. Curves and turnarounds shall be designed for a 40 foot turning radius.
c. Dead end lanes more than 300 feet long shall provide for a turn around that is T-type,
hammerhead, cul-de-sac, or curved driveway at the closed end of the lane.
d. The surface shall be paved with bituminous or concrete or other approved similar all weather
material and shall be of sufficient strength to support City firefighting equipment.

(8) "Fire hydrant" means a hydrant satisfying the specifications contained in Subch. II, Baraboo Water
Utility, of Ch. 13 of this Code

(9) “Fire performance” means any act including, but not limited to, fire juggling, fire tossing, fire
eating, fire dancing, etc., that occurs inside or outside of a building in a public or private place that use
utilizes fire.

(10)“Open burning” means burning occurring outside of a building.

(11) "Recreational fires" and "cooking fires" both mean open burning for outdoor recreation and/or
cooking purposes in an enclosure designed specifically for ember and flame containment, excluding a
barrel, such as rocked-in pits, fireplaces, or barbecue grills which use only charcoal, propane gas or dry,
untreated and unpainted wood as the burning material, and which satisfy the conditions set forth in
Section 5.13, below.

5.03 COMPOSITION OF DEPARTMENT. (xxxxx)

6 of 74



City of Baraboo Council Minutes February 11, 2020 Volume 42 Page #441

(1) ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE. The Fire Department shall be made up of a combination of
full-time, part-time and paid-per-call firefighters. The staff levels of full-time, part-time and paid-per-call
shall be reviewed at appropriate intervals by the Common Council. The Fire Chief shall make
recommendations for appropriate staffing levels to maintain the mission of the Fire Department.

(2) FIRE CHIEF APPOINTMENT. Pursuant to §62.13(3), Wis. Stats., the Fire Chief shall be appointed
by the Police and Fire Commission and shall hold office subject to suspension or removal by the
Commission for cause.

(3) OTHER OFFICERS AND SUBORDINATES. Pursuant to §62.13(4), Wis. Stats., other Fire Department
officers and subordinates shall be appointed by the Fire Chief, subject to confirmation by the Police and
Fire Commission and as authorized by Common Council.

5.04 POWERS AND DUTIES OF FIRE CHIEF. (xxxxx)

(1) DISCIPLINARY ACTION. The Fire Chief shall have the power to suspend, demote, expel or
otherwise discipline members of the Fire Department, subject to appeal to the Police and Fire Commission,
as provided by §62.13(5), Wis. Stats.

(2) DEPARTMENT BUDGET. The Fire Chief shall file with the City’s Finance Director, pursuant to
the City’s regular budgeting cycle, a detailed estimate of the appropriations needed for the conduct of the
Fire Department during the ensuing fiscal year.

(3) GENERAL SUPERVISION. The Fire Chief shall have the general supervision of the Fire Department,
which supervision shall be subject to and not conflict with this chapter, the policies, procedures, rules or
regulations of the Fire Department. The Fire Chief shall be responsible for the safety of the members of the
Fire Department.

(4) PRESIDING OFFICER. The Fire Chief or designee shall preside at all meetings of the Fire
Department, call special meetings, preserve order, decide all points of order that may arise, and enforce
a rigid observance of this chapter and the policies, procedures, rules and regulations of the Fire
Department.

(5) COMMAND OF FIREFIGHTING OPERATIONS. The Fire Chief shall be present at all fires, if
possible, and have complete command and entire responsibility for all firefighting, plan the control of
the same, direct the action of the firefighters when they arrive at a fire, observe that every firefighter
does his/her duty, grant leaves of absence at a fire when he/she may deem it proper, and see that the fire
apparatus is kept in proper condition at all times.

(6) REQUIRED REPORTS.
a. The Fire Chief or designee shall keep records of all incident responses made by the Fire
Department. The Fire Chief or designee shall report all fire incident responses to the National
Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) as required by the Wisconsin Administrative Code
SPS 314. Additionally, all other reports as required by State Statue or Administrative Code
shall be completed.

b. The Fire Chief shall submit a monthly written report to the Common Council listing the
previous month’s incident responses and fire prevention inspections/activities. Furthermore, a
monthly report, whether written or verbal, shall be given to the Public Safety Committee on
any pertinent information including, but not limited to, operations, membership, apparatus,
equipment or training.

(7) ENFORCEMENT OF FIRE PREVENTION ORDINANCES. The Fire Chief shall enforce all
Wisconsin state laws, administrative codes and city ordinances pertaining to fire protection and fire
prevention. The Fire Chief shall oversee the fire prevention programs.

(8) POLICIES AND GUILDELINES. The Fire Chief shall develop policies, procedures, and other
rules and regulations regarding the operation of the Fire Department that conform to the spirit of best

7 of 74



City of Baraboo Council Minutes February 11, 2020 Volume 42 Page #442

practice in the modern day fire service as well as in compliance with this chapter. All members of the Fire
Department shall have access to policies, procedures, rules and regulations and train on same.

(9) OTHER DUTIES. The Fire Chief shall perform such other duties as are usually incumbent
on the commanding officer of the Fire Department.

5.05 CONTROL AND CARE OF APPARATUS AND EQUIPMENT. (xxxxx)

(1) The Fire Chief shall have control of all apparatus and equipment used by the Fire Department and
shall be responsible for its proper care and maintenance. All apparatus and equipment shall be
inventoried and information kept on file. Emergency repairs may be authorized by the Fire Chief
pursuant to the City’s Purchasing Policy.

(2) Where required, all apparatus and equipment shall be tested at the recommended intervals and
records of such tests shall be kept on file.

(3) No equipment or apparatus shall be used for any purpose except for incident response that is within the fire
protection area, or in training therefore, except:

a. Pursuant to mutual or automatic aid agreements approved bythe Common Council after the
Fire Chief has given his/her recommendations on such use, and/or

b. With the prior written approval of the Fire Chief or designee, such apparatus may be used
for nonemergency purposes within an area approved by the Fire Chief.

5.06 POLICE POWER OF DEPARTMENT. (xxxxx)

(1) POLICE AUTHORITY AT FIRES. The Fire Chief or subordinate officers in command at any fire
are hereby vested with full and complete police authority at fires. Any officer of the Fire Department may
cause the arrest of any person failing to give the right of way to the Fire Department in responding to a fire.

(2) CONTROL OF FIRES. The Fire Chief or subordinate officers in command at anyfire mayprescribe certain
limits in the vicinity of any fire within which no persons excepting firefighters and police officers and those admitted by
order of any officer of the Fire Department shall be permitted to enter. The Fire Chief or subordinate officers in
command at any fire may cause the removal of any property whenever it shall become necessary for the preservation of
such property from fire or to prevent the spreading of fire or to protect the adjoining property, and during the progress of
any fire he/she may order the removal or destruction of any property necessary to prevent the further spread of the fire.
He/she may also cause the removal of all wires or other facilities and the turning off of all electricity or other services
where the same impedes the work of the Fire Department during the progress of a fire.

(3) ENTERING PREMISES. Any firefighter while acting under the direction of the Fire Chief or other
officer in command may enter upon the premises adjacent to or in the vicinityofanybuilding or other property for the
purpose of extinguishing such fire and if any person shall hinder, resist or obstruct any firefighter in the discharge of
his/her duty as is herein before provided the person so offending shall be deemed guilty of resisting firefighter in the
discharge of their duties.

(4) DUTIES OF BYSTANDERS. Every person who is present at a fire shall be subject to the orders of
the Fire Chief or officer in command and may be required to render assistance in fighting the fire or removing or
guarding property. Such officer may cause the arrest of any person refusing to obey said orders.

(5) INJURY TO EQUIPMENT PROHIBITED. No person shall willfully injure in any manner any hose,
hydrant or fire apparatus belonging to the City and no vehicle or railroad equipment shall be driven over any
unprotected hose of a fire department when laid down on any street, private driveway, track or other place to be
used at any fire or alarm of fire without the consent of the Fire Department official in command.

(6) DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY TO PREVENT THE SPREAD OF FIRE. During the progress of
any fire, the Fire Chief or designee(s) shall have the power to order the removal or destruction of any property
necessary to prevent the further spread of fire; provided that it is inevitable that, unless such property is removed
or destroyed other property is in danger of being of being destroyed by fire.

8 of 74



City of Baraboo Council Minutes February 11, 2020 Volume 42 Page #443

5.07 FIRE PREVENTION. (1727 04/27/94, XXXXX)

(1) STATE CODES ADOPTED. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Chapter, the statutory
provisions of §101.14, Fire Inspections, Prevention, Detection and Suppression, Wis. Stats., Wisconsin
Administrative Code SPS 314 and the following chapters of the Wisconsin Administrative Codes are hereby
adopted by reference and made a part of this Code as if fully set forth herein. Any act required to be performed or
prohibited by any statute or code provision incorporated herein by reference is required or prohibited by this
Code. Any future amendments, revisions or modifications of the statutes and codes incorporated herein are
considered to be made a part of this Code in order to secure uniform statewide regulation:

ATCP 93 Flammable, Combustible and Hazardous Liquids
ATCP 94 Petroleum and Other Liquid Fuel Products

SPS 307 Explosives
SPS 316 Wisconsin State Electrical Code
SPS 318 Elevator Code

SPS 328 Smoke Detectors

(2) FIRE CHIEF TO BE FIRE INSPECTOR. The Fire Chief shall hold the office of Fire Inspector with
power to appoint one or more Deputy Fire Inspectors, who shall perform the same duties and shall have the
same powers as the Fire Inspector.

(3) CORRECTION OF VIOLATIONS. Whenever any fire inspection reveals a violation of this Code,
the Fire Inspector or Deputy Fire Inspector shall personally deliver, email, or send by certified mail, return
receipt requested, a written compliance order to the owner of the property and to the occupant if the property is
occupied by a person not the owner thereof, giving said persons a reasonable time, not to exceed sixty (60)
calendar days, to correct all violations. If a violation is not corrected within the grace period allowed, a second
written compliance order shall be personally delivered, emailed or sent by certified mail, return receipt
requested, to the same persons giving said persons an additional grace period, not to exceed thirty (30) calendar
days, to correct the violations. If any violation is not corrected within the grace period allowed by the second
order, a citation may be issued to the owner and to the occupant of the property, or to an agent as provided for
by Chapter 25 of this Code.

a. Each individual violation on a property and each day any such violation continues after the grace period
allowed in the second notice shall constitute a separate offense.

b. If the compliance order is not referred to the Department of Safety and Professional Services for further action, an
action to abate such nuisance may be commenced by the City as provided in §10.07 of this Code.

c. Nothing herein shall be interpreted to mean that a citation cannot be issued immediately upon the finding of
a violation of this Code, subject to the discretion of the Fire Inspector or Deputy Fire Inspector, based upon the
seriousness of the offense, prior similar offenses, or for other reasonable reasons.

(4) CITATION AUTHORITY. The Fire Chief, Deputy Fire Inspectors and City Police Officers shall be
authorized to issue citations for violations of this Chapter using the uniform citation method set forth in §9.27
of this Code.

(5) SPECIAL CHARGES FOR INSPECTIONS FOR NON-COMPLIANCE. A special charge as
provided in the City’s Official Fee Schedule, §1.90, shall be imposed for the second and each subsequent
inspection where the inspection reveals that the owner or occupant of the property has not corrected the violations
contained in the compliance order. The owner and occupant, or agent thereof as provided for by Chapter 25 of
this Code, of each property inspected shall be jointly and personally liable for the charge. If the charge is not paid
within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of billing, an additional administrative collection charge of 10 percent
(10%) of the charge shall be added to the amount due, plus interest shall accrue thereon at the rate 1 percent (1%)
per month until paid and such charge shall be extended upon the current or next tax roll as a charge against the
inspected property for current services, as provided in §66.0627, Wis. Stats.

(6) ENTERING ON PREMISES. No person shall deny a Fire Inspector or Deputy Fire Inspector free

9 of 74



City of Baraboo Council Minutes February 11, 2020 Volume 42 Page #444

access to any property within the City at any reasonable time for the purpose of making fire inspections. No
person shall hinder or obstruct a Fire Inspector or Deputy Fire Inspector in the performance of his/her duty or
refuse to observe any lawful direction given by the Inspector. The Fire Chief shall be deemed a peace officer
for the purpose of applying for, obtaining and executing a special inspection warrant pursuant to §66.0119,
Wis. Stats.

(7) DISCLAIMER ON INSPECTIONS. The purpose of the inspections under this section is to complywith
the fire inspection provisions of the State codes. The inspections and the reports, findings and orders issued after such
inspections are not intended as, nor are they to be construed as, a guarantee. In order to advise owners, occupants and
other interested persons, a disclaimer shall be included in each inspection report as follows: "The findings of the
inspection contained herein are intended to report conditions of non-compliance with Code provisions that are readily
apparent at the time of inspection. The inspection does not involve a detailed examination of the mechanical systems
or the closed premises. The City makes no warranty or representation, expressed or implied that its inspection of the
property has discovered all fire code violations or all fire hazards or that this report contains a complete list of all fire
code violations existing on the property inspected herein.”

(8) LICENSE OR PERMIT WITHHELD. No license shall be granted or renewed for the operation of
any trade, profession, business or privilege for which a license is required by any provisions of this Code nor
shall any occupancy permit under Chapter 14 of this Code be issued for any property that contains any
outstanding violation of this section.

(9) VIOLATION AND PENALTY. Any person who violates, disobeys, neglects, omits or refuses to comply
with, or resists the enforcement of any of the provisions of this section shall be subject to a penaltyas provided in SPS
314 Adm. Code and/or §25.04 of this Code.

5.08 GUNPOWDER. (Renumbered only XXXX) No person shall keep or store more than 10 pounds of
gunpowder at any place within the City without the written permission of the Fire Chief. Any dealer permitted to
keep at his place of business in excess of 10 pounds of gunpowder shall not keep more than 200 pounds at any one
time, and such gunpowder shall be kept in a safely constructed box painted yellow with the word "POWDER"
printed or painted thereon in black letters not less than 5 inches in height and equipped with handles so that the
same may be readily moved in case of fire, and such box shall be kept in such part of the dealer's place of business as
may be directed by the Fire Chief.

5.09 DYNAMITE. (Renumbered only XXXX) No person shall keep or store within the City any
nitroglycerine, dynamite, giant powder or other explosives more violent than gunpowder without the written
permission of the Fire Chief or otherwise than in accordance with the conditions prescribed in such permission as
granted and in no case shall more than 50 pounds of any such explosive be stored or kept within 300 feet of any
dwelling or other occupied building. The Fire Chief may direct the placement and the manner of keeping the same
and the precautions to be observed in connection therewith.

5.10TRAFFIC LAWS APPLY TO VOLUNTEERS. (Renumbered only xxxxx) All firefighters, when
responding to an incident call in a private vehicle, shall comply with all traffic regulations.

5.11 EMERGENCY ALARM SYSTEMS. See §12.14 of this Code. (1833 09/26/95, Renumbered only
XXXXX)

5.12 RESERVED (xxxx)

5.13 REGULATION OF BURNING. (1935 04/14/98, xxxx)

(1) OPEN BURNING PROHIBITED.

a. Except as otherwise provided in this Section, no person shall burn or cause to be burned any leaves,
grass, wood, rubbish, waste, recyclable paper products, recyclable cardboard, painted wood, pressure treated
lumber, and/or any material made of in whole or in part or coated with rubber, plastic, leather or petroleum based
materials, and/or products containing flammable materials or other combustible material.

b. An Open Burning Permit may be issued by the Fire Chief or designee for prescribed vegetation
management purposes subject to reasonable conditions to mitigate fire hazards. The fee for an Open Burning

10 of 74



City of Baraboo Council Minutes February 11, 2020 Volume 42 Page #445

Permit shall be as set forth in the City’s Official Fee Schedule, §1.90, as set by the Common Council. Applications
for a permit must be submitted to the City Clerk at least seven (7) calendar days prior to the burning. Supervision
and inspection costs shall be billed to the owner of the property upon which supervision or inspection is required.
Open Burning Permits shall apply to individual parcels or occupancies and are not transferable from person to
person, parcel to parcel or occupancy to occupancy; however, Open Burning Permits may encompass multiple
parcels under common ownership if part of a common vegetation management project.

(2) REGULATION OF RECREATION FIRES AND COOKING FIRES. Recreational fires and cooking
fires are permitted so long as they comply with each of the following conditions:

a. Burning, under this subsection, shall not be kindled or maintained in a barrel.

b. No burning shall be kindled or maintained on or within any street, sidewalk, treebank, alley, parking lot,
drainage ditch or public right-of-way.

c. No burning shall be maintained such that the flames exceed four feet in height.

d. No burning shall be maintained so as to cause a public nuisance prohibited by Ch. 10 of the Code.

e. Except for barbecue, gas, and charcoal grills, any other burning receptacle, enclosure or pit shall be no
greater than 30 inches in diameter at its greatest width.

f. All such burning shall be constantly supervised and personally attended by a responsible adult until the
fire is completely extinguished. The person in charge of the fire shall have fire extinguishing equipment or
materials available at all times and easily accessible for immediate use.

g. Except for barbecue, gas, and charcoal grills, no burning shall be kindled or maintained during periods when either
the Fire Chief or the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources has issued a burning ban.

h. Whenever a portable fireplace or grill is located on a combustible surface, such as a wooden patio or deck,
a non-combustible material shall be placed under and around the fireplace or grill for a distance of at least 24
inches on each side thereof.

i. In relation to one and two family dwellings, except for barbecue, gas, and charcoal grills, no such burning
shall be undertaken within 15 feet of any combustible material, combustible wall or partition, exterior window
opening, exit access or exit unless authorized by the Fire Chief. (2353 01/25/11)

j. In buildings with three or more dwelling units, no burning shall be undertaken within 25 feet of any
combustible material, combustible wall or partition, exterior window opening, exit access or exit unless
authorized by the Fire Chief. (2118 05/27/03, 2353 01/25/11)

k. In buildings with three or more dwelling units, regardless of type or size, no barbecue, gas, charcoal or electric
grill, or any other burning receptacle shall be stored or used on balconies above the first floor, under anyoverhangs or
within 10 feet of the structure. (2118 05/27/03, 2353 01/25/11)

(3) BONFIRES REGULATED. No person shall kindle or maintain any bonfire without first obtaining a
Bonfire Permit from the Fire Chief or designee and each such permit shall be subject to the conditions
established by the Fire Department. Applications for a permit must be submitted to the City Clerk at least seven
(7) calendar days prior to the bonfire. The permit fee shall be as set forth in the City’s Official Fee Schedule,
§1.90, as set by the Common Council.

(4) FIRE PERFORMANCE. No person shall engage in any fire performance without first obtaining a Fire
Performance Permit from the Fire Chief or designee, at his or her discretion, and each permit shall be subject to
the conditions established by the Fire Department. Applications for a permit must be submitted to the City Clerk at
least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the performance. The permit fee shall be as set forth in the City’s Official
Fee Schedule, §1.90, as set by the Common Council.

(5) EXCEPTIONS TO BURNING REGULATIONS. The following fires for burning shall be exempt
from the provisions of subs. (1) - (4), above: (2118 05/27/03)

11 of 74



City of Baraboo Council Minutes February 11, 2020 Volume 42 Page #446

a. Fires conducted inside of a building including, but not limited to, fireplaces and incinerators.

b. Fires conducted to remove frost from the ground by public utility companies, City
employees, cemeteries, and building contractors.

c. Small open flames for welding, acetylene torches, safety flares, heating tar or similar
applications.

d. Fires conducted for training or instruction of firefighters by the Fire Department or for the
testing of fire equipment by the Fire Department.

e. Any fire expressly authorized in writing by the Fire Chief. An Exception to Burning
Regulations Permit issued by the Fire Chief shall be subject to the conditions established by the Fire
Department. The fee for an Exception to Burning Regulations Permit shall be as set forth in the City’s Official
Fee Schedule, §1.90, as set by the Common Council. (2118 05/27/2003)

(6) EMERGENCY REGULATIONS. The Fire Chief may, when necessary, declare a "Emergency
Condition of Fire Hazard" for a specified period of time and, during such time, no burning shall be permitted
unless done or controlled by the Fire Department. In addition, during such declared fire emergency period, the
Fire Chief may prohibit the use of the following:

a. Fireworks as defined by §167.10(1), Wis. Stats.

b. Any of the items included under §167.10(1)(e), (f), (i), (j), (k), (l), (m), and (n), Wis. Stats.

c. Any other device that may pose a fire hazard.

(7) OPEN BURNING PROHIBITED WHEN WIND EXCEEDS EIGHT (8) MILES PERHOUR.Noperson
shall kindle or maintain any open burning within the City whenever the wind speed exceeds eight (8) miles per hour as
measured by a portable wind meter device approved by the Fire Chief. Before taking anyenforcement action under this
subsection, the Fire Chief or his/her designee shall first order the violator to completely extinguish the open burning. A
citation shall not be issued if the open burning is immediately extinguished after the order to do so has been given. No
person shall continue to maintain any open burning after being ordered to completely extinguish the burning as
provided in this Section. (2146 04/13/2004)

(8) PERMIT REQUIREMENTS. All permits required under this Section must meet the minimum City
licensing and permitting standards of §12.01 and shall require the permittee to indemnify the City of Baraboo.

(9) ENFORCEMENT. The Fire Chief and his/her designee(s) and Police Officers of the City shall be
authorized to enforce the provisions of this Section. (Renumbered only per 2146 04/13/2004)

(10) RECOVERY OF ABATEMENT COST. The City has determined that a violation of this section creates a
public nuisance or a hazard to the public safety. Therefore, in addition to any other penalty imposed by this code for a
violation of this section, if the Fire Department is dispatched to a fire caused as a result of any act, omission, condition,
or thing that constitutes a violation of this section, the person causing, permitting, or maintaining such occurrence, may
be charged a fee to cover the City’s cost for responding to such public nuisance. Any such fee shall be charged as set
forth in the City’s Official Fee Schedule, §1.90. The charge shall be collected as a debt and, if the charge is not paid
within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of billing, an administrative collection charge of ten percent (10%) of the
charge shall be added to the amount due, plus interest shall accrue thereon at the rate of one percent (1%) per month
until paid. If the owner of the property where the public nuisance occurred caused, permitted, or maintained such public
nuisance, such charge shall be extended upon the current or next tax roll, to the extent allowed by law. (2118
05/27/2003, Renumbered only per 2146 04/13/2004)

5.14FIRE LANES AND FIRE HYDRANTS (1870 05/14/96, 2002 01/11/2000, XXXXX)

(1) FIRE LANES AND FIRE HYDRANTS REQUIRED. Fire lanes and fire hydrants shall be required
in accordance with this section on public or private property used for assembly, commercial, educational,
industrial, institutional, or multi-family dwelling purposes, and on private property containing residential
developments consisting of three or more dwelling units to which access is provided from a public street by a

12 of 74



City of Baraboo Council Minutes February 11, 2020 Volume 42 Page #447

private road or driveway where any dwelling unit is set back more than fifty (50) feet from the paved portion of
the public street. Fire lanes may also be designated on those private roads where it is found by the Fire Chief that
such access is necessary for firefighting equipment and apparatus. No building permit shall be issued without
compliance with the terms of this section if any part of the area being developed contains any of the uses or
conditions described in this section.

(2) LOCATION AND MAINTENANCE OF FIRE LANES AND FIRE HYDRANTS. Fire lanes and fire
hydrants shall be located where necessary to provide fire protection to all buildings and premises within the City as
determined by the Fire Department. In all cases, a fire hydrant shall be located within 350 feet fromeach building to be
served by the hydrant and all hydrants shall be accessible to fire lanes. All existing and new fire hydrants located on
private property shall be routinely inspected, repaired, tested, and maintained by the owner thereof as specified in
American Water Works Association Manual 17, Installation, Field Testing and Maintenance of Fire Hydrants, and all
fire hydrants shall satisfy the minimum performance requirements established by the City Water Department for City
fire hydrants. The City’s Water Department and Fire Department personnel shall have open and free access to all fire
hydrants upon public and private property within the City at any reasonable time for the purpose of inspecting,
repairing, testing, and maintaining fire hydrants. The fire flow test procedures in National Fire Protection Association
Ch. 291, Fire Flow Testing and Marking of Hydrants, shall be followed when performing fire hydrant fire flow tests.

(3) SNOW REMOVAL. Each owner and/or each occupant of any premises where a fire lane and/or a fire
hydrant is required shall be responsible for the prompt removal of snow and ice from a fire lane and for the prompt
removal of all snow surrounding each fire hydrant. (2002 01/11/2000)

(4) WRITTEN RECORDS. Written records shall be maintained by the Utility Superintendent showing
the installation, inspection, field testing, repair, and maintenance of each fire hydrant within the City. Such
records shall be made available for inspection and copying upon request to the City.

(5) DISCLAIMER ON FIRE HYDRANT INSPECTING AND TESTING. The purpose of the inspection and
testing of fire hydrants authorized by this Section is to improve the quality of fire protection service within the City.
Any inspections and the reports and findings issued pursuant thereto are not intended as, nor are they to be construed
as, a guarantee. The findings of any inspection or testing are intended to ascertain conditions that are readilyapparent at
the time of such inspection or testing and do not involve a detailed examination of all mechanical systems on the entire
premises. The City makes no representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the thoroughness or accuracyofany
such inspection or testing. The City disclaims, and does not assume, any liability or responsibility whatsoever in the
event any error or omission was made by the City as the result of an inspection and/or testing authorized by this
Section, whether such errors or omissions result from negligence, accident, or other source or cause. The City shall
further not be liable or responsible for damage caused to any fire hydrant while such fire hydrant is being properly
tested as required by this Section.

(6) DUTIES AND POWERS OF FIRE CHIEF. All building and project development plans for projects covered
by this Section shall be referred to the Fire Chief for examination and approval. If the Fire Chief finds that a proposed
fire lane or fire hydrant in a development project does not comply with this Section, the Fire Chief shall be authorized
to specify the changes necessary to bring the proposal into compliance. Appeals from orders of the Fire Chief shall be
to the Zoning Board of Appeals. The Fire Chief shall inspect the construction of any fire lanes and the placement and
specifications of any fire hydrant required by this Section and no occupancy permit shall be issued for any project
covered by this Section until the Fire Chief has inspected and approved the fire lanes and fire hydrants.

(7) DESIGNATION AND SIGNAGE FOR FIRE LANES. The owner or occupant of any premises
where a fire lane is required under this Section shall designate and mark all fire lanes and shall post appropriate
signs indicating the existence of all fire lanes and indicating that no parking is permitted on fire lanes at any
time, as specified and approved by the Fire Chief. Signs and markings shall be used in such locations and in
such a manner as in the judgment of the Fire Chief will carry out the purposes of this Section and give
adequate warning to users of the premises where the fire lanes and fire hydrants are located. Signage and
markings shall meet the following minimum standards:

a. Where reasonably feasible, signs shall be erected within 5 feet of the beginning and within 5 feet of the
end of the fire lane with spacing between signs not exceeding 75 feet. Each sign shall face in the direction of
oncoming traffic and shall be affixed to a stationary pole or object.

13 of 74



City of Baraboo Council Minutes February 11, 2020 Volume 42 Page #448

b. Curb along a fire lane shall be painted yellow and if no curb exists, a 4-inch wide stripe shall be painted
the full length of the fire lane. Lanes identified exclusively as fire lanes shall be identified with approved fire
lane signs on each side facing forward and the pavement area between the signs shall be striped with 4-inch
wide yellow strips.

(8) OBSTRUCTIONS OTHER THAN MOTOR VEHICLES. No person who is the owner or occupant of a
premises required by this Section to maintain a fire lane or a fire hydrant shall place, locate, permit, or allow the
placement or location of any obstruction of any fire lane or so as to block access to any fire hydrant. (2027
09/12/2000)

(9) RESTRICTED PARKING IN FIRE LANES. See §7.09 of the Code.

5.15KEY LOCK BOX SYSTEM (2394 04/23/2013, XXXX)

(1) The following structures shall be equipped with a key lock box or a component thereof at or near
the main entrance or such other location required by the Fire Chief:
a. Commercial or industrial structures protected by an automatic alarm system or automatic suppression
system, or such structures that are secured in a manner that restricts access during an emergency.
b. Multi-family residential structures protected by an automatic alarm system, or automatic suppression
system, or that have restricted access through locked doors and have a common corridor for access to the living
units.
c. Governmental structures.
d. Any special facilities or properties that may possess restricted access by the means of a fence, gate or
similar device.

(2) This ordinance shall not be construed to require a key lock box for the following structures or uses:
a. One- and two-family dwellings.
b. Hospitals, nursing homes, jails or other institutional use buildings when on-site staff is available at all
times.
c. Commercial or industrial structures when on-site staff is available at all times.
d. In the event that any of the structures or uses as set forth in this paragraph install a key lock box system, it
shall meet and comply with all the requirements of this ordinance.

(3) All newly constructed structures subject to this Section shall have the key lock box installed and
operational prior to the issuance of a occupancy permit. All existing structures as of the effective date of this
ordinance and subject to its provisions shall have one year to install an operational key lock box.

(4) The Fire Chief shall designate the type of key lock box system to be implemented within the City
and shall have the authority to require all structures as set forth in section (1) of this ordinance to use the
designated system.

(5) The owner or operator of a structure required to have a key lock box shall, at all times, keep current
key(s) in the key lock box, each of which shall be clearly marked so as to indicate it’s purposes, that will allow
access to the structure. The key lock box shall contain the following keys, as applicable:
a. Keys to locked points of ingress and egress, whether on the interior or exterior of such buildings.
b. Keys to locked mechanical rooms.
c. Keys to locked elevator rooms.
d. Keys to elevator controls.
e. Keys to any fence or secured areas.
f. Keys to any other areas as directed by the Fire Chief or Deputy Fire Inspector.
g. Keys required by this section shall not include keys to individual living units in a multi-family residential
structure.

(6) The Fire Chief shall be authorized to implement rules and regulations for the placement and use of
the key lock box system.

14 of 74



City of Baraboo Council Minutes February 11, 2020 Volume 42 Page #449

(7) The Fire Department is authorized to share key lock box access with other public safety
departments, including the Sauk County Sheriff’s Department, the Baraboo Police Department, and the
Baraboo Ambulance District, under rules and policies to be established by the Fire Chief.

(8) Entry keys shall be updated as necessary and will be checked as part of the fire inspection visits.

(9) The owner or operator of a structure required to have a key lock box system shall provide to the
Fire Department a list each year of the emergency contacts in case of an emergency requiring the use of the key
lock box.

(10) Any person who owns or operates a structure subject to this section shall be subject to the penalties
set forth in §5.30 of this Code for any violations of this section.

5.16 SEVERABILITY. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Chapter is for any reason
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by reason of any decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision
shall not affect the validity of any other section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase or portion thereof, and to this
extent, the provisions of this ordinance shall be severable. (2118 05/27/2003, Renumbered only per 2146 04/13/2004,
Renumbered only XXXXX)

5.17 thru 5.29 Reserved

5.30ENALTY. (2002 01/11/2000, 2027 09/12/2000, Renumbered only XXXXX) Any person who violates,
disobeys, neglects, omits, or refuses to comply with or who resists the enforcement of any of the provisions of this
chapter, or any order, rule, or regulation made hereunder shall be subject to a penalty as provided in §25.04 of this
Code. In addition to the payment of a forfeiture, the City Attorneymay, in addition to other remedies provided bylaw,
institute appropriate action or proceedings to prevent or enjoin the erection, enlargement, alteration, repair, moving or
occupancy of any building or structure located on any premises in violation of this chapter. In anysuch action, the fact
that a permit was issued shall not constitute a defense and each violation and each day a violation continues or occurs
shall constitute a separate offense.

2. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as provided by law.

Moved by Ellington, seconded by Kolb and carried unanimously to approve the 1st reading of
Ordinance No. 2544 amending Section 1.90, Fee Schedule, of the Baraboo Municipal Code.

1. Section 1.90, Fee Schedule, of the Baraboo Municipal Code is amended as follows:

Bonfire Permit - $50.00 (currently $25.00)
Open Burning Permit - $50.00 (currently $25.00)
Fire Performance Permit - $50.00 (this is a new permit)

2. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as provided by law.

ADMINISTRATOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS
 Finance Director, Cynthia Haggard will be featured on 99.7fm radio to address the Baraboo

Transit System on Wed. Feb. 12th.

REPORTS, PETITIONS, AND CORRESPONDENCE
The City officially acknowledges receipt and distribution of the following:

 Reports: January, 2020 Building Inspection

15 of 74



City of Baraboo Council Minutes February 11, 2020 Volume 42 Page #450

 Minutes from the Following Meetings:

Finance/Personnel Committee–Dennis Thurow Committee Room, #205 January 28, 2020
Members Present: Petty, Thurow, Kent
Absent:
Others Present: Mayor Palm, Adm. Downing, E. Truman, B. Zeman, P. Cannon, J. Bergin, Ald. Ellington, T. Pinion

Call to Order –Ald. Petty called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. noting compliance with the Open Meeting Law. Moved by
Kent, seconded by Thurow to approve the minutes of January 14, 2020 and carried unanimously. Moved by Kent, seconded by
Thurow to approve the agenda and carried unanimously.

Action Items
a) Accounts Payable – Moved by Kent, seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council for approval of the accounts

payable for $481,819.67. Motion carried unanimously.

b) Review and Recommendation to Common Council for approving CDBG $1,000,000 Grant application towards
library expansion project – Adm. Downing explained that the Library Board was interested in applying for a CDBG
Grant for the Library expansion. There are a lot of requirements to apply and implement a CDBG Grant and the
Library is not able to apply themselves, the City of Baraboo must apply as the head agency. Ald. Petty noted that based
on the pros and cons provided to the Committee, he does not see this as a financial benefit. Ald. Kent agrees with Ald.
Petty and also noted that this would tie up this grant for other projects during the 2-year window.

City Engineer T. Pinion reminded the Committee that we used a CDBG Program this year to free up some revolving
loan funds. There was a large amount of administration work that had to be done in-house, much more than originally
expected. It’s agreed that we would definitely have to hire out for the administration of this grant.

CDA Director P. Cannon noted that it’s a $1,000,000 grant with a non-refundable $10,000 application fee. MSA has
offered to administer the grant for a fee of $60,000-$70,000. At that point, you are making Ninety-three cents on the
dollar. Because of the changes to prevailing wage, it’s going to cost another fifty to sixty cents on the dollar so all of a
sudden your return on investment is not as great as what was expected. Additionally, it’s hard to put a cost on the
opportunity cost; regular tasks that are not getting done by staff.

Library Director J. Bergin explained that this first came up while working with their architects, MSA. The Library Board is
aware of the different costs associated with the grant. She feels that the Library Board would like the Committee to
consider if this is a good use of this grant. Is there another City project that might be better use of this grant? The grant
application deadline is soon approaching. The Library project will be able to move forward with or without this grant.

Mayor Palm explained that on a weekly basis, you are required to monitor every person that worked on this job. You are
constantly chasing contractors for this information. Because the Library does not need this money to build, some
additional fundraising will be a lot less trouble in the long run. Davis-Bacon wage rates will, without a question, increase
the cost of the library.

No recommendation made.

c) Review and Recommendation for approving pay grade increase for Office Assistant-Accounts in the Finance
Department – C. Haggard explained that two employees hired in the Finance Department were brought in as Grade 3.
Because these employees have taken on more responsibilities, with little or no supervision, she is requesting an increase to
Grade 4 for both employees. The job description has been amended as well, changing their titles to be “Finance Assistant-
Accountant”. Former City Adm. Geick did a job factor analysis and supported the recommendation. The wage increase
will be effective 1/1/2020 and is included in the 2020 budget

Ald. Kent agrees with the wage increase; making the revision on the high quality of work and advanced job duties. The
work being done for the CDA is still being done; it’s redefined in the new job description. C. Haggard does not feel this
requires additional staff.

Motion by Kent, seconded by Thurow to recommend the Grade Increase to Council for action. Motion carried
unanimously.

d) Review and Recommendation to approve updates to the Employee Handbook for the City’s FMLA policy and
Holiday policy – The Committee reviewed the changes to the Employee Handbook. Adm. Downing explained that most
of the changes to the FMLA policy now reference the federal regulations; FMLA will now be based on a 12-month look-
back period, not calendar year. The Holiday policy is amended to include Martin Luther King Jr. Day. Adm. Downing
presented wage information for Police Holiday pay and explained that police officers do have the option of taking holiday
as comp time. Ald. Petty feels that potential staff will look at both their hourly wages as well as the benefit packages; not
only on new hires, but also retaining current staff. Motion by Kent, seconded by Thurow to recommend the updated
Employee Handbook to Council for action. Motion carried unanimously.

Informational Items

16 of 74



City of Baraboo Council Minutes February 11, 2020 Volume 42 Page #451

1) Chief Schauf presented information regarding a possible rate increase for parking citations. Parking tickets are done
on a bond schedule approved by Finance and Council. Chief Schauf recommends increasing the $10 to $15 and the
$20 to at least $25. Atty. Truman is also going to add an appeals process to the ordinance. Ald. Petty is in favor of
raising the citations but would like to see some feedback from the officers. This information will be presented at a
later meeting.

Adjournment – Moved by Kent, seconded by Thurow and carried to adjourn at 6:44pm.

Baraboo Economic Development Commission Meeting Minutes January 2, 2020

I. Call to Meeting to Order and Note Compliance with Open Meeting Law
Chair John Alt called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM at the Baraboo Municipal Building, room 205, 101 South Blvd.,
Baraboo, WI. The meeting was noticed in conformance with Wisconsin State Statues regarding open meetings.

II. Roll Call
Present: Alt, Bowers, Johnson, Palm, Ryan, White
Absent: Ayar, Caflisch, Mueller, Reppen, Taylor, Walczak, Wastlund
Other: Kennie Downing, Patrick Cannon

It was noted that quorum was not present at the meeting, therefore the meeting was cancelled

Minutes of Plan Commission Meeting January 21, 2020

Call to Order – Phil Wedekind called the meeting of the Commission to order at 6:00 PM.

Roll Call – Present were Phil Wedekind, Dennis Thurow, Roy Franzen, Pat Liston, Jim O’Neill, Kolb, and Dee Marshall.

Also in attendance were Tom Pinion, Administrator Kennie Downing, Bob Vajgrt, , Shawn McNevin, Brian Hearn, Jim Lombarg, and
Bridget Gore (BNR).

Call to Order
a. Note compliance with the Open Meeting Law. Wedekind noted compliance with the Open Meeting Law.
b. Agenda Approval: It was moved by Liston, seconded by Kolb to approve the agenda as posted. Motion carried

unanimously.
c. Minutes Approval: It was moved by Kolb, seconded by O’Neill to approve the minutes of the December 17, 2019 meeting.

Motion carried unanimously.

Public Invited to Speak (Any citizen has the right to speak on any item of business that is on the agenda for Commission action if
recognized by the presiding officer.) –There were no speakers.

Public Hearing
a. The request of the Baraboo School District for a Conditional Use permit to expand the existing Jack Young Middle School

building in an R-1 Single-Family Residential zoning district on Lot 1 of CSM #4227, located at 1531 Draper Street, City of
Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin - There being no speakers, the hearing was declared closed.

New Business

a. Consider the Baraboo School District’s request for a Conditional Use Permit to expand the existing Jack Young Middle
School building in an R-1 Single-Family Residential zoning district on Lot 1 of CSM $4227, located at 1531 Draper Street, City
of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin – Bob Vajgrt, Architect for the project introduced himself to the Commission. Vajgrt
presented the proposed site plan to the Commission. He stated that the addition is going over the top of the existing gymnasium
and cafeteria. The addition is comprised of a new gymnasium, an expanded student commons/cafeteria, and additional learning
spaces. He said that all the areas of the addition is one-story, other than within the commons there is a library that expands over
the top, there is a two-story there, almost like a bridge. He said that there will also be renovations to the existing building within
the project. He said that the circular parking is being removed, additional parking will be added. Vajgrt then presented erosion
control, and utilities. He said that the entire building will be sprinkled. He said that the building addition, other than the
academic one will be separated from the rest of the building by a fire wall. He then touched on landscaping, along with the nature
trail being added, and sitting areas. Jim Lombarg then presented stormwater, saying that there would be a basin installed just
south of the new parking lot. He said the basin will have landscaping included. Vajgrt then presented the lighting plan to the
Commission. He then gave a detailed presentation of the floor plan. Brian Hearn spoke more of the architecture of the building to
the Commission. He said that they are trying to blend some of the existing materials with the existing building. He said that the
existing brick is a three-brick blend, and the new brick that will be used is a complimentary color, a slightly brighter tone. The
other materials that will be used on the academic addition, commons, and the gym have a stone base, which is a lighter stone. He
said a third material that will be used on the commons areas is a composite metal panel used on the commons area, similar to the
high school. Liston asked if this would be conventional heat. It was stated that different options are being looked at for heating.

17 of 74



City of Baraboo Council Minutes February 11, 2020 Volume 42 Page #452

Kolb asked if any consideration has been given to solar heat. Sean McNevin said when the referendum was done solar wasn’t
included based on numbers. He said that Committee are working on solar options, the District has commissioned a study for the
Jack Young Middle School, and High School, and looking at adding on and supplementing it, not only for the power savings, but
also for the curriculum addition. The solar would be done as an add-on, and done through their budget. He said, ironically, they
are finding out that the High School is the better investment because it is used year round. Kolb asked if they were thinking solar
array, or rooftop, and McNevin said that they have settled on a rooftop. It was moved by Liston, seconded by Kolb to approve
the request for a conditional use permit as presented. On roll call vote for the motion, Thurow, Franzen, Liston, O’Neill, Kolb,
Marshall, and Wedekind. Nay – 0, motion carried unanimously. McNevin said that this addition is really transforming the inside
of this building. He said what has been done is going from a Middle School, mixed classroom concept to a house concept, which
is one of the biggest changes that will not be seen from the outside. He said that the increased size of the cafeteria will decrease
the number of lunch periods down to two instead of three. The gymnasium now will be able to fit the entire school body in the
bleachers.

b. Review and approve a site plan for renovations to the Jack Young Middle School, at 1531 Draper Street, for the Baraboo
School District – It was moved by Liston, seconded by Kolb to approve the site plan for renovations to the Jack Young Middle
School as presented. On roll call vote for the motion, Franzen, Liston, O’Neill, Kolb, Marshall, Wedekind, and Thurow. Nay – 0,
motion carried unanimously.

Adjournment - It was moved by Liston, seconded by Franzen to adjourn at 5:47 p.m. The motion carried unanimously.

 Copies of these meeting minutes are on file in the Clerk’s office:
Emergency Mgmt……….. 11-21-2019 Public Arts………….. 12-12-2019
Library…………… 12-3-2019, 1-28-2020 Airport…..… 1-7-2020, 1-29-2020
Park & Recreation…. 1-6-2020, 1-13-2020
CDA ……………… 12-3-2019, 1-7-2020

 Petitions & Correspondence Being Referred: None.

ADJOURNMENT
Moved by Petty, seconded by Wedekind, and carried on voice vote, that the meeting adjourn

at 7:21pm.

Brenda Zeman, City Clerk

18 of 74



S:\Council\Resolutions\2020 Resolutions\2-25-20 Claims.docx

CA – 1

RESOLUTION NO. 2019 - Dated: February 25, 2020

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background:

Fiscal Note: (Check one) [ ] Not Required [ ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

THAT the Accounts Payable, in the amount of $ as recommended for payment by the
Finance/Personnel Committee, be allowed and ordered paid.

Offered By: Consent Approved by Mayor:
Motion:
Second: Certified by City Clerk:

19 of 74



S:\Council\Resolutions\2020 Resolutions\2-25-2020 Adult Crossing Guard.docx

NBR - 1

RESOLUTION NO. 2020- Dated: February 25, 2020

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background

Adult school crossing guards are permitted by State Statute and City Code to assist in the safe crossing and
protection of students and other pedestrians who are crossing a highway in the vicinity of a school. §
349.215, Wis. Stat. and §7.14(7), Baraboo Municipal Code. The City employs up to six individuals as adult
school crossing guards - enduring bad weather and inattentive drivers - to ensure the safety of our kids
walking to and from school. The last wage increase for this position was in 2006, setting the rate at
$10/session, two sessions per day, for a total of $20/day.

Recruitment for this position is difficult due to the odd hours and working conditions. A check of local
partners found we are also under paying the position.

W estB araboo
 $28.12 per day at the Linn Street location (equivalent of $14.06 per shift)

o Incentive for busier intersection
 $22.81 per day all other locations (Equivalent of $11.405 per shift)
 Raise every year –approximately 3%

P ortage
 $15.00 per shift

S u n P rairie
 $26.00 per day (equivalent of $13.00 per shift)

M adison
 $17.91 per regular shift and $17.99 per shift when on call/substitute

To aid in recruitment and properly compensate these employees, staff is requesting to raise the rate to
$15/ session. This will not have a budget impact due to this wage increase being budgeted for in 2020.

Fiscal Note: ( one) [ ] Not Required [ x ]Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments: B udgedforin 2020

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

TO :A pprovethewageadjustment forA dult SchoolC rossingGuardsto $15persession,effective
M arch 1,2020.

Offered by: Finance/P ersonnelC ommittee Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

20 of 74



S:\Council\Resolutions\2020 Resolutions\2-25-2020 PW Projects Reso.doc

NBR – 2

RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - Dated: February 25, 2020

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: B idsw erereceivedon February19,2020forasphalt paving,asphalt pavement
materials,asphalt patching,concretecurbandsidew alkrepair,crushedaggregatebasecourse,and
concreteand asphalt crushing,and associated w ith theP ublicW orksD epartment projectsfor
2020.Thefollow ingisa tabulation of thebids:

P roposal#1 –A sphaltic P aving,approximately7 ,000 sq yds
D .L .GasserC onstruction $ 90,420
Scott C onstruction $109,800

P roposal#2 –A sphaltP avementM aterial,approximately8 00 tons
D .L .GasserC onstruction $41,200

P roposal#3–A sphaltP avementP atching,approximately1,000 sq yds
A B B S P aving $40,100
D .L .GasserC onstruction $44,660
Scott C onstruction $71,150

P roposal#4 –M iscellaneou s C & G and S idewalkReplacement,approximately8 ,000 sq ft
C oncreteServiceC ompany $ 93,400
RennhackC onstruction $116,395

P roposal#5–C ru shed A ggregate B ase C ou rse,approximately1,000 tons
KraemerC ompany $6,400
D .L .GasserC onstruction $7,100

P roposal#6 –A sphaltand C oncrete P avementC ru shing,approximately5,000 tons
A -1E x cavating,Inc $40,000
KraemerC ompany $40,480
GerkeE x cavating $41,600
A llen SteeleC o,Inc. $44,000
D .L .GasserC onstruction $48,000

These bids were reviewed by the Public Safety Committee at their February 24th meeting
and they unanimously recommended their award to the respective low bidders.
Fiscal Note: (check one) [ ] Not Required [ x ] Budgeted Expenditure [ ] Not Budgeted
Comments

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

That thelow bidsof:
D .L .Gasser $90,420 – P roposal#1–A sphalticP aving
D .L .Gasser $41,200 – P roposal#2–A sphalt P avement M aterials
A B B S P aving $40,100 – P roposal#3–A sphalticP atching
C oncreteServiceC ompany $93,400 – P roposal#4–C urbandgutter& sidew alkrepair
KraemerC ompany $ 6,400 – P roposal#5–C rushedA ggregateB aseC ourse
A -1E x cavating,Inc $40,000 – P roposal#6–C oncreteandA sphalt C rushing

A reherebyacceptedandallotherbidsarerejected.

Offered by: P ublicSafetyC omm.Approved by Mayor:
Motion:
Second: Certified by City Clerk:

21 of 74



S:\Council\Resolutions\2020 Resolutions\2-25-20 Plow Truck Purchase.doc

NBR - 3
RESOLUTION NO. 2020 - Dated: February 25, 2018

The City of Baraboo, Wisconsin

Background: ThisResolution isto request thepurchaseof a 2020FreightlinerSD 114plow
truck to replacea 1995 Ford L -8000 plow truck using 2020 budgeted funds,asw ell asfunds
from savingson thecity’s2020V ermeerW oodC hipperpurchase.

TheP ublic W orksD epartment solicited quotesfrom fourdifferent chassisvendorsand four
different bodybuilders.L akesideInternational (International)provided a priceof $90,024.86;
TruckC ountry(Freightliner)provideda priceof $87,470.00;IstateTruckC enter(W estern Star)
didnot providea quote;andQ ualityTruckC areC enter(W estern Star)didnot providea quote.
Thebodyup-fittingquotesw ereprovided byM onroeTruckat a priceof $87,185.00;M adison
Truckw ith a priceof $88,544.00;UniversalTruckw ith a priceof $83,009.00;and C aspertruck
E quipment declined providing a quote.A fterreview of all provided quotes,thepreferred
combination comprisesof a 2020 Freightliner SD 114 chassisand a 2020 H enderson 11’
StainlessSteelD umpB odyw /UniversalP low E quipment at a cost of $170,479.00.TheD P W
currentlyutilizesoneFreightlinerplow truck in itsfleet and hasseveral routetrucksoutfitted
w ith UniversalTruckE quipment packages.

Thepurchaseof thisnew truck isbeing recommended dueto theageand accumulated hours
of ourcurrent unit scheduled forreplacement.W ith thelowervolumeof usenecessaryat
B araboo-D elton A irport,theFordL -8000to bereplacedw illbesoldto theairport forthesum
of $7,500.00 forsnow plow ing and anti-icing purposes.Thepurchaseof the2020 Freightliner
SD 114w illbecompleted utilizing $165,000that w asbudgeted in our2020C apitalE quipment
B udget and $5,479.00 from the$12,044.45 savingsw eex perienced during our2020 V ermeer
B rush C hipperpurchase.O ncethesaleof the1995 Ford L -800 to theairport occurs,the
$7,500.00 proceedsfrom thesalew ill beplaced in theC apital E quipment Fund foruseon
futureequipment purchases.

Thismatterw asreview ed bytheFinanceC ommitteeat theirFebruary25,2020 meeting and
theyunanimouslyrecommended the2020 Freightlinerchassisfrom Truck C ountryw ith the
H enderson B ody/UniversalP low E quipment at a totalcost of $170,479.00

Fiscal Note: (√ one)   [ ] Not Required  [ X ] Budgeted Expenditure   [ ] Not Budgeted 
Comments:

Resolved, by the Common Council of the City of Baraboo, Sauk County, Wisconsin:

TH A T thepurchaseof a new 2020FreightlinerSD 114chassisanda 2020H enderson
B ody/UniversalTruckP low E quipment at a combinedcost of $170,479.00isherebyapproved.

Offered by: Approved:
Motion:
Second: Attest:

22 of 74



S:\C ou ncil\O rd inances\2020 O RD IN A N C ES\2-25-20 Repealand Recreate Section 11.07 Solid W aste and Recyclable C ollection.d ocx

NBO - 1

TheC ityof B araboo,W isconsin

B ackground: The Solid Waste and Recycling Collection Ordinance was last updated in 2014 to reflect the
change to fully-automated collection. Prior to that, the last update was in 2003. Considering the regulatory
changes that have occurred in the meantime and the requirements imposed by the operator of the Transfer
Site we use, the time has come for a wholesale revision to this Ordinance.

The revisions reflect the policies and practices that have been utilized by collection staff.

The Public Safety Committee discussed this revised Ordinance at their January 27th meeting and directed staff
to finalize it and prepare it for Council Consideration.

FiscalN ote:(check one) [x ]N ot Requ ired [ ]B udgetedE x penditure [ ]N ot B udgeted Comments:

Repealing and Recreating Ordinance § 11.07.

THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARABOO, WISCONSIN, DO
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

1. § 11.07 will be repealed and the following will be created:

11.07 SO L ID W A STE A N D RE C Y CL A B L E CO L L E C TIO N .

(1) S ER VICEP R O VIDED.
(a) R esidentialCollection.T heCity shallcausethecollectionofgarbage,refuse,and

recyclablesw ithintheboundariesoftheCity from thefollow ingtypesofbuildings:
1. S ingle-andT w o-Fam ily R esidences.S ingle-andtw o-fam ily residences,including

any single-andtw o-fam ily residencesthatareoccupiedby theow nerw hoalso
operatesabusinessontheprem ises,suchasahom eoccupation,and
condom inium sasprovidedinsubs.2,below .

2. R esidentialCondom inium s.A condom inium residencelocatedinaresidential
buildingshallbeconsideredaresidenceentitledtoCity collectionofgarbage,
refuse,andrecyclablesifthefollow ingpreconditionsaresatisfied:

a. T heeligiblecondom inium residenceshallbeindividually ow nedby a
perm anentoccupantthereof.T em porary occupancy ofacondom inium
dw ellingunitby atenantshallonly beeligibleforCity garbage,refuse,and
recyclablecollectionifapprovedby theP ublicS afety Com m ittee.

b. T heresidenceshallhaveaprivateentrancetotheoutsideoftheresidential
building.

c. T hecondom inium residenceshallbeeitherasingle-fam ily condom inium or
locatedinaresidentialbuildingconsistingonly ofotherresidencesthat
com ply w ithsubsections(a)and(b),above.

(b) T ypesofBuildingsN otR eceivingCity Collection.
1. T heCity shallnotcollectgarbage,refuse,andrecyclablesfrom thefollow ing:

a. Allnon-residentialbuildings,includingcom m ercial,professional,
governm ental,service,andindustrialbusinesses.

b. Allm ulti-fam ily dw ellings,apartm ents,andhousingcom plexescontaining
three(3)orm oredw ellingunitsinastructureorbuilding,except
condom inium squalifyingundersubs.(1)(a),above.

23 of 74



S:\C ou ncil\O rd inances\2020 O RD IN A N C ES\2-25-20 Repealand Recreate Section 11.07 Solid W aste and Recyclable C ollection.d ocx

c. Alldw ellingunitsintheCentralBusinessDistrictexceptone-andtw o-
fam ily residentialbuildingsandone-andtw o-fam ily residentialbuildings
occupiedby theow nerw hoalsooperatesabusinessontheprem ises.

d. Allm anufacturedhom eparks.
e. Any otherbuildingthatdoesnotqualify forresidentialcollectionas

providedinsubs.(1),above.
2. Allgarbage,refuse,andrecyclablesgeneratedfrom buildingsnotreceivingCity

collectionshallbecollectedby aprivatesolidw asteandrefusefirm licensedby the
S tateofW isconsinDepartm entofN aturalR esources.T heow ner(s)oroccupant(s)
ofany suchbuildingshallarrangeforgarbage,refuse,andrecyclablecollectionw ith
aprivatecollectionfirm andshallcom ply w ithallapplicableprovisionsofthis
§11.07.

(2) DEFIN IT IO N S .U nlessspecifically definedherein,w ordsorphrasesusedinthis§11.07shallbe
interpretedsoastogivethem thesam em eaningasthey haveatcom m onlaw .
(a) “Alum inum Container.” A containerusedforcarbonatedorm altbeveragesorfoodand

othernon-hazardousm aterialsthatism adeprim arily ofalum inum .
(b) “ApprovedContainer.” A containerforstorageand/orcollectionofrecyclables,garbage,

refuse,and/orsolidw asteapprovedby theP ublicS afety Com m ittee.
(c) “Bi-M etalContainer”.A containerforcarbonatedorm altbeveragesthatism adeprim arily

ofacom binationofsteelandalum inum .
(d) “Cardboard.” T hatportionofcorrugatedcardboardcom m only usedaspackingboxesor

containersthatrem ainsubstantially intheiroriginalconditionatthetim eofdisposalsuch
thatthem aterialissuitableforcom m ercialgraderecycling."Cardboard"doesnotinclude
thecardboardusedincerealboxes,cakem ixboxes,etc.,w hichisnotsuitablefor
recyclingpurposesorisinastatew hichm akesseparationunreasonableorunduly
expensive,forreasonsw hichinclude,butarenotlim itedto,thefollow ing:

1. T hecardboardhasbeenputtoanotheruse,suchasacontainerforotherw astes,
andisthusrenderedunfitforcom m ercialrecycling.

2. T hecardboardism ixedinw ithcom m ercialorm unicipallitterorrefuseasaresultof
thefailureofcitizenorbusinessinviteestoseparatecardboardfrom other
discardedm aterialsoutdoorsorinpublicly accessibleareasofbuildings.

3. T hecardboardhasbeendam agedoralteredby any otherm eanssoastom ake
recyclingim possibleorunduly difficult.

(e) “ContainerBoard.” Corrugatedpaperboardusedinthem anufactureofshipping
containersandrelatedproducts.

(f) “FiberP aperP roduct.” Cardboardcontainerboard,corrugatedpaper,new spapers,
m agazines,new s-print,officepaper,cardboardcerealanddry goodsboxes,w astepaper,
andotherpaperandcard-boardproducts.

(g) “Foam P olystyreneP ackaging.” P ackagingm adeprim arily from foam polystyrenethat
satisfiesthefollow ingcriteria:

1. Isdesignedforservingfoodorbeverages.
2. Consistsoflooseparticlesintendedtofillspaceandcushionthepackagedarticlein

shippingcontainer.
3. P ackagingm aterialthatconsistsofrigidm aterialsshapedtoholdandcushionthe

packagedarticleinashippingcontainer.
(h) “Garbage.“Discardedm aterialsresultingfrom thehandling,processing,storage,and

consum ptionoffood.(S eeCh.289,W is.S tats.)
(i) “HDP E.” High-density polyethylene,labeledby theS P Icode#2.
(j) “L DP E.” L ow density polyethylene,labeledby theS P Icode#4.
(k) “M agazine.” M agazinepublicationandotherm aterialprintedonsim ilarpaper.

24 of 74



S:\C ou ncil\O rd inances\2020 O RD IN A N C ES\2-25-20 Repealand Recreate Section 11.07 Solid W aste and Recyclable C ollection.d ocx

(l) “M ajorAppliance.” A residentialorcom m ercialairconditioner,clothesdryer,clothes
w asher,dish-w asher,freezer,m icrow aveoven,oven,refrigerator,stove,furnace,boiler,
dehum idifierandw aterheater.

(m ) “M ultiple-Fam ily Dw elling.” A property containingthreeorm oreresidentialunits,
includingthosew hichareoccupiedseasonally.

(n) “N ew spaper.” A new spaperpublicationandotherm aterialsprintedonnew sprint.
(o) “N ew sprint.” T hatportionofnew spapersorperiodicalsthatrem ainsubstantially intheir

originalconditionatthetim eofdisposal,suchthatthem aterialissuitableforcom m ercial
graderecycling."N ew sprint"doesnotincludethepapercom m only usedintheproduction
ofm agazines,books,andotherphysicalm ediaforw rittenm aterial,orpaperw hichisnot
suitableforrecyclingpurposesorisinastatew hichm akesseparationunreasonableor
unduly expensive,forreasonsw hichinclude,butarenotlim itedto,thefollow ing:

1. T hepaperhasbeenputtoanotheruse,suchasw rappingsforotherw astes,andis
thusrenderedunfitforcom m ercialrecycling.

2. T hepaperisnolongerflatandfoldedtotheapproxim atedim ensionsofitsoriginal
condition.

3. T hepaperism ixedinw ithcom m ercialorm unicipallitterorrefuseasaresultofthe
failureofcitizenorbusinessinviteestoseparatenew spapersfrom otherdiscarded
m aterialsoutdoorsorinpublicly accessibleareasofbuildings.

4. T hepaperhasbeendam agedoralteredby any otherm eanssoastom akerecycling
im possibleorunduly difficult.

(p) “N on-R esidentialFacilitiesandP roperties”.Com m ercial,retail,industrial,institutionaland
governm entalfacilitiesandproperties.T histerm doesnotincludem ultiple-fam ily
dw ellings.

(q) “O fficeP aper.” High-gradeprintingandw ritingpapersfrom officesinnon-residential
facilitiesandproperties.P rintedw hiteledgerandcom puterprintoutsareexam plesof
officepapergenerally acceptedashighgrade.T histerm doesnotincludeindustrial
processw aste.

(r) “O therR esinsorM ultipleR esins.” P lasticresinslabeledby theS P Icode#7.
(s) “P erson.” Includesany individual,corporation,partnership,association,local

governm entalunit,asdefinedin§66.0131,W is.S tats.,stateagency orauthority orfederal
agency.

(t) “P ET E.” P olyethyleneterephthalate,labeledby theS P Icode#1.
(u) “P lasticContainer.” Anindividual,separate,rigidplasticbottle,can,jarorcarton,except

forablisterpack,thatisoriginally usedtocontainaproductthatisthesubjectofaretail
sale.

(v) “P ost-Consum erW aste.” S olidw asteasdefinedherein,otherthansolidw astegenerated
intheproductionofgoods,hazardousw aste,asdefinedinCh.291,W is.S tats.,w aste
from constructionanddem olitionofstructures,scrapautom obiles,orhigh-volum e
industrialw aste,asdefinedinCh.289,W is.S tats.

(w ) “P P .” P olypropylene,labeledby theS P Icode#5.
(x) “P S .” P olystyrene,labeledby theS P Icode#6.
(y) “P VC.” P olyvinylchloride,labeledby theS P Icode#3.
(z) “R ecyclablesorR ecyclableM aterial.” Any container,paperproduct,orotherm aterialor

productdesignatedforrecyclingby theP ublicS afety Com m ittee.
(aa) “R efuse.” M eansallm aterialsproducedfrom industrialorcom m unity life,subjectto

decom position,notdefinedassew age.(S eeCh.289,W is.S tats.)
(ab) “R esidentialBuildingorR esidence.” A buildingorstructurew hoseprim ary orprincipal

designanduseisforresidentialdw ellingpurposes.
(ac) “S ew age.” T hem eaningspecifiedinCh.289,W is.S tats.,shallapply.
(ad) “S olidW aste.” T hem eaningspecifiedinCh.289,W is.S tats.,shallapply.
(ae) “S olidW asteFacility.” T hem eaningspecifiedinCh.289,W is.S tats.,shallapply.

25 of 74



S:\C ou ncil\O rd inances\2020 O RD IN A N C ES\2-25-20 Repealand Recreate Section 11.07 Solid W aste and Recyclable C ollection.d ocx

(af) “S olidW asteT reatm ent.” Any m ethod,techniqueorprocessthatisdesignedtochange
thephysical,chem icalorbiologicalcharacterorcom positionofsolidw aste.T reatm ent
includesincineration.

(ag) “S teelContainer.” Anindividual,separate,rigidsteelcanthatisoriginally usedtocontain
aproductthatisthesubjectofaretailsale.

(ah) “W asteP aperP roduct.” R eusablepaperotherthannew sprintandshallincludeby w ay of
exam ple,butnotby w ay oflim itation,m agazines,papers,foodcartons,bags,w rapping
paper.

(ai) “W asteT ire.” A tirethatisnolongersuitableforitsoriginalpurposebecauseofw ear,
dam age,ordefect.

(aj) “YardW aste.” S uchm aterialas,by w ay ofenum eration,butnotlim itation,branches,tree
trunks,shrubs,grassclippings,yardandgardendebrisandbrush,andany sim ilar
vegetativem aterialorsubstance.

(3) CIT Y CO L L ECT IO N R EGU L AT IO N S .
(a) Allbuildingsprovidedw ithCity garbageandrefusecollectionshallbecollectedonceper

w eekatthetim eandplacesetforthinthepublishedcollectionschedule.R ecyclablesshall
becollectedevery otherw eek.T heS treetS uperintendentm ay scheduleadditional
collectionsifhe/shedeem ssuchadditionalcollectionsarenecessary inordertopreventa
healthorsafety hazard.N ocollectionshallbem adeonlegalholidays,butshallbem ade
onsuchdateasdesignatedby theS treetS uperintendentorP ublicS afety Com m ittee.T he
S treetS uperintendentorP ublicS afety Com m itteeshallhavetheauthority tom ake
regulationsconcerningthedaysofcollection,locationofgarbage,refuse,andrecyclable
containers,andsuchotherm atterspertainingtothecollection,conveyance,anddisposal
ofgarbage,refuse,andrecyclablesashe/sheshallfindnecessary,andtochangeand
m odify theseregulationsprovidedthatsuchregulationsarenotcontrary toany other
provisionof§11.07.Allgarbage,refuse,andrecyclablesshallbeplacedasdesignatedby
theS treetS uperintendentorP ublicS afety Com m itteeby 7AM onthescheduledcollection
day.T heP ublicW orksDepartm entshallnotberequiredtoleavethepublichighw ay or
alley forthepurposeofm akingacollectionunlessdirectedtodosoby theP ublicS afety
Com m itteeorS treetS uperintendent.Any personaggrievedby aregulationm adeby the
S treetS uperintendentshallhavetherighttoappealtotheP ublicS afety Com m itteew ho
shallhavetheauthority toconfirm ,m odify,orrevokeany suchregulation.(2346
09/28/2010)

(b) T heCity shallonly collectgarbage,refuse,andrecyclablesplacedforcollectionin
approvedcontainersasrequiredby this§11.07.Anapprovedcontainershouldconsistofa
96-galloncart,w hichm ustbepurchasedfrom theCity ofBaraboo.A m inim um ofonecart
forgarbageandonecartforrecyclablesisrequiredforeachdw ellingunit,unlessother
arrangem entsarem adeandapprovedby theS treetS uperintendent.

(c) Eachresidentialdw ellinguniteligibleforCity collectionshallutilizecartsapprovedby the
City ofBarabooforrefuseandrecyclingcollection.Itshallbeunlaw fulforany person
and/orow nerand/oroccupantofaproperty to:

1. P laceany garbage,refuse,orrecyclableforCity collectionatany locationnot
designatedorapprovedby theS treetS uperintendent.

2. Failtoprom ptly cleanupandrem ovelitterandloosem aterialthathasnotbeen
collected.

3. P laceany garbage,refuse,orrecyclablecartforcollectiononany street,alley,or
otherpublicplaceoruponany collectionsiteonprivateproperty before3 P M ofthe
day priortothepublishedcollectionday,exceptuponthepriorexpressapprovalof
theS treetS uperintendent.

26 of 74



S:\C ou ncil\O rd inances\2020 O RD IN A N C ES\2-25-20 Repealand Recreate Section 11.07 Solid W aste and Recyclable C ollection.d ocx

(4) R ES IDEN T IAL IT EM S N O T CO L L ECT ED BY T HECIT Y.Exceptasprovidedinsubs.(7),below ,no
personshallplaceforCity collectionany ofthefollow ing:(1684 03/29/93)
(a) Allsubstancesandm aterialsclassifiedashazardousw asteasdefinedinCh.N R 187W is.

Adm .Code,flashw asteandotherw astesgeneratedprim arily from thecom binationof
coalorfossilfuels,foundry w astes,sludge,dom esticw astefrom privatesew agedisposal
system s,infectiousw astes,freeliquidw astes,etc.

(b) T oxicw astes,chem icals,explosives,andam m unition.
(c) Drainorw asteoilorotherflam m ableliquids.
(d) P aintinliquidform .
(e) T iresandautom obileparts.
(f) Yardw aste.
(g) Dem olitionw asteandconstructiondebrisincludingm aterialsfrom rem odeling,

constructionorrem ovalofabuilding,roadw ay,orsidew alk.
(h) T reetrunksandstum ps.
(i) Householdappliancesandhouseholdfurniture.
(j) Deadanim als.
(k) U ndrainedfoodw aste.
(l) Industrialw aste.
(m ) Garbageorrefusestrew nby anim alsorvandalspriortocollection.
(n) S tone,rubble,earthandsod.(1684 03/29/93)

(5) M AN DAT O R Y R ECYCL IN G.(177812/13/94)
(a) P urposeandAuthority.T hepurposeofthisS ectionistoprom oterecycling,com posting,

andre-sourcerecovery throughtheadm inistrationofaneffectiverecyclingprogram ,as
providedinCh.287,W is.S tats.andCh.N R 544,W is.Adm .Code.T hisS ectionisadopted
asauthorizedunderCh.287,W is.S tats.

(b) AbrogationandGreaterR estrictions.Itisnotintendedby thisS ectiontorepeal,abrogate,
annul,im pair,orinterferew ithany existingrules,regulations,ordinancesorperm its
previously adoptedorissuedpursuanttolaw .How ever,w heneverthisS ectionim poses
greaterrestrictions,theprovisionsofthisS ectionshallapply.

(c) Interpretation.T heinterpretationandapplicationoftheprovisionsofthisS ectionshallbe
m inim um requirem entsandshallnotbedeem edalim itationorrepealofany otherpow er
grantedby theW isconsinS tatutes.W hereany term sorrequirem entsofthisS ectionis
inconsistentorconflictsw itheachother,them orerestrictiverequirem entor
interpretationshallapply.W hereaprovisionofthisS ectionisrequiredby W isconsin
S tatutes,orby astandardinCh.N R 544,W is.Adm .Code,andw heretheS ectionprovision
isunclear,theprovisionshallbeinterpretedinlightoftheW isconsinS tatutesandtheCh.
N R 544 standardsineffectonthedateoftheadoptionofthisS ection,orineffectonthe
dateofthem ostrecenttextam endm enttothisS ection.

(d) Applicability.T herequirem entsofthisS ectionapply toallpersonsw ithintheCity of
Baraboo,W isconsin,including,butnotlim itedto,ow ner(s)andoccupant(s)ofbuildings
noteligibleforCity collection.

(e) Adm inistration.T hebusinessofthisS ectionshallbeadm inisteredby theS treet
S uperintendent.(204702/13/2001)

27 of 74



S:\C ou ncil\O rd inances\2020 O RD IN A N C ES\2-25-20 Repealand Recreate Section 11.07 Solid W aste and Recyclable C ollection.d ocx

(f) S eparationofM aterials.(S eeCh.287,S tats.)O ccupantsofsingle-andtw ofam ily
residences,m ultiple-fam ily dw ellings,andnon-residentialfacilitiesandpropertiesshall
separatethefollow ingm aterialsfrom garbage,refuse,andpost-consum erw aste:

1. L eadacidbatteries.
2. M ajorappliances.
3. W asteoil.
4. Yardw aste.
5. Alum inum containers.
6. Bi-m etalcontainers.
7. Corrugatedpaperorothercontainerboard.
8. Foam polystyrenepackaging.
9. Glasscontainers.
10. M agazines.
11.N ew spaper.
12. O fficepaper.
13.R igidplasticcontainersm adeofP ET E,HDP E,P VC,L DP E,P P ,P S ,andotherresinsor

m ultipleresins.
14.S teelcontainers.
15.W astetires.
16.Allotherm aterialsdesignatedby theP ublicS afety Com m itteeasarecyclable.

(g) S eparationR equirem entsExem pted.T heseparationrequirem entsofS ubs.(f)donot
apply tothefollow ing:

1. O ccupantsofsingle-andtw ofam ily residences,m ultiple-fam ily dw ellingsandnon-
residentialfacilitiesandpropertiesthatsendtheirgarbage,refuse,andpost-
consum erw astetoaprocessingfacility licensedby theW isconsinDepartm entof
N aturalR esourcesthatrecoversthem aterialsspecifiedinsubsection(f)from solid
w asteinaspureaform asistechnically feasible.

2. S olidw astethatisburnedasasupplem entalfuelatafacility iflessthan30% ofthe
heatinputtothefacility isderivedfrom thesolidw asteburnedassupplem ental
fuel.

3. A recyclablem aterialspecifiedpursuanttosubsection(f)forw hichavariancehas
beengrantedby theDepartm entofN aturalR esourcesunderCh.287,W is.S tats.,or
Ch.N R 544.14,W is.Adm inistrativeCode.

(h) CareofS eparatedR ecyclableM aterial.T othegreatestextentpracticable,therecyclable
m aterialsseparatedinaccordancew ithsubsection(f)shallbecleanandkeptfreeof
contam inantssuchasfoodorproductresidue,oilorgrease,orothernon-recyclable
m aterials,includingbutnotlim itedtohouseholdhazardousw aste,m edicalw aste,and
agriculturalchem icalcontainers.R ecyclablem aterialsshallbestoredinam annerthat
protectsthem from w ind,rain,andotherinclem entw eatherconditions.

(i) M anagem entofL eadAcidBatteries,M ajorAppliances,W asteO il,YardW aste,andW aste
T ires.O ccupantsofsingleandtw o-fam ily residences,m ulti-fam ily dw ellingsandnon-
residentialfacilitiesandpropertiesshallm anageleadacidbatteries,m ajorappliances,
w asteoilandyardw asteasfollow s:

1. L eadacidbatteriesshallbedeliveredby theow nertovendorsw how illacceptlead
acidbatteriesforrecycling.Vendorsm ay im poseachargeforthisservice.

2. W asteoilshallbedeliveredby theow nertoanapproveddisposalcenter.
3. Yardw astesshallnotbecollectedby theCity andshallberetainedby theow ner

thereofexceptasm ay beauthorizedby §11.07(7)ofthisCode.(1785 01/24/95)

28 of 74



S:\C ou ncil\O rd inances\2020 O RD IN A N C ES\2-25-20 Repealand Recreate Section 11.07 Solid W aste and Recyclable C ollection.d ocx

4. W astetires,shallbedeliveredby theow nertoany vendorlicensedforthedisposal
orrecyclingofw astetires.Vendorsm ay im poseachargeforthisservice.

(j) P reparationandCollectionofR ecyclableM aterials.Exceptasotherw isedirectedby the
S treetS uperintendentortheP ublicS afety Com m ittee,ow nersoroccupantsofeach
building providedw ithCity collectionofgarbage,refuse,andrecyclablesshalldothe
follow ingforthepreparation,collection,andseparationoftherecyclablem aterials
specifiedinS ubs.(f):(204702/13/2001)

1. Allitem sdesignatedasrecyclablem aterialby theW isconsinDN R andacceptedby
thew astetransferfacility thattheCity deliverstheseitem toshallbeplacedloosein
adesignatedrecyclingbin.Allitem sm ustbeplacedinaCity-approvedcontainerfor
pickup,unlesspreviously approvedby theS treetS uperintendentorP ublicS afety
Com m ittee.Intheeventthatadditionalstoragecapacity isnecessary,anadditional
cartisavailableforpurchasefrom theCity ofBaraboo.

2. O fficepaperm ay beshreddedandplacedloosely inrecyclingcontainerinpaper
bagsinrecyclingcontainerforcollection.

3. T othegreatestextentpracticable,recyclablem aterialsshallbecleanedandkept
freeofcontam inantssuchasfoodorproductresidue,oilorgrease,orothernon-
recyclablem aterials,including,butnotlim itedto,householdhazardousw aste,
m edicalw aste,andagriculturalchem icalcontainers.R ecyclablem aterialsshallbe
storedinam annerthatprotectsthem from w ind,rain,andotherinclem ent
w eatherconditions.

(k) CollectionP ractices.P ersonsw hoareservedby theCity’sgarbageandrefusecollection
serviceshallalsoplacerecyclablem aterialsforpickupby theCity onthesam eday asthe
scheduledday forgarbage,refuse,andpost-consum erw aste(solidw aste)collection
pursuanttotheevery-other-w eekscheduleforrecyclablecollection.T oencourageproper
recycling,thereshallbenolim itonthenum berofrecyclablesthatm ay beplacedfor
collection.Allrecyclablem aterialsm ustbeplacedincartsapprovedby theCity of
Baraboo,unlessapprovedotherw iseby theS treetS uperintendentorP ublicS afety
Com m itteeAllrecyclingcartsshallbeaccessibletothecollectionservicew itham inim um
of3’spacingfrom allim pedim ents,i.e.utility poles,m ailboxes,streetsigns,othercarts,
structures,vehicles,etc.Itshallbeunlaw fulforany personorow neroroccupantofa
property to:

1. P laceforcollectionany recyclablem aterialsatany locationnotdesignatedor
approvedby theS treetS uperintendent;

2. P laceany recyclablesforcollectioninany street,alley,orotherpublicplace,orupon
any collectionsiteonprivateproperty before3 p.m .ontheday priortothe
publishedcollectionday,exceptuponthepriorexpressedapprovaloftheS treet
S uperintendent.

3. Failtoprom ptly cleanupandrem ovelitterandloosem aterialthathasnotbeen
collected.(1964 01/12/99,204702/13/2001)

(l) R esponsibilitiesofO w nersorDesignatedAgentsofM ultipleFam ily Dw ellingsand/orN on-
R esidentialFacilitiesandP roperties.

1. O w nersordesignatedagentsofm ultiplefam ily dw ellingsandnon-residential
facilitiesandpropertiesshalldoallofthefollow ing:

a. P rovideadequate,separatecontainersforrecyclablem aterials.
b. N otify tenantsinw ritingatthetim eofrentingorleasingthedw ellingor

non-residentialfacility andproperty andatleastsem i-annually thereafter
abouttheestablishedrecyclingprogram .

29 of 74



S:\C ou ncil\O rd inances\2020 O RD IN A N C ES\2-25-20 Repealand Recreate Section 11.07 Solid W aste and Recyclable C ollection.d ocx

c. P rovideforeachtenantaspecificplacem entlocationforcollectionof
garbageandrefuseandaseparateandspecificplacem entlocationfor
collectionofrecyclablem aterials.

d. N otify tenantsinw ritingattim eofrentingorleasingofreasonstoreduce
andrecyclesolidw aste,w hichm aterialsarerecyclablem aterials,how to
preparerecyclablem aterialsinordertom eettheprocessingrequirem ents,
collectionm ethodsandsitesforplacem entforcollectionofrecyclable
m aterialsseparatefrom garbageandrefuse,locationsandhoursof
collection,andacontactpersonorcom pany,includinganam e,addressand
telephonenum ber.

e. T heow nerofrentalproperty shallberesponsibleforviolationsofthis
S ectionoccurringonrentalproperty.

2. T herequirem entsspecifiedinsubs.(m )(1),above,donotapply totheow nersor
designatedagentsofm ultiplefam ily dw ellings,ornon-residentialfacilitiesand
propertiesifthepost-consum erw astegeneratedw ithinthedw ellingornon-
residentialfacility andproperty istreatedataprocessingfacility licensedby the
Departm entofN aturalR esourcesthatrecoversforrecyclingthem aterialsspecified
insubsection(f)from solidw asteinaspureaform asistechnically feasible.

(m ) P rohibitionsonDisposalofR ecyclableM aterialsS eparatedforR ecycling.N opersonm ay
disposeofinasolidw astedisposalfacility orburninasolidw astetreatm entfacility any of
them aterialsspecifiedinsubs.(f),above,w hichhavebeenseparatedforrecycling,except
w astetiresm ay beburnedw ithenergy recovery inasolidw astetreatm entfacility.

(n) Enforcem ent.Forthepurposeofascertainingcom pliancew iththeprovisionsofthis
ordinance,any authorizedofficer,em ployeeorrepresentativeoftheCity m ay inspect
recyclablem aterialsseparatedforrecycling,garbage,refuse,andpost-consum erw aste
intendedfordisposal,recyclingcollectionsitesandfacilities,collectionvehicles,collection
areasform ultiple-fam ily dw ellingsandnon-residentialfacilitiesandproperties,andany
recordsrelatingtorecyclingactivities,w hichshallbekeptconfidentialw hennecessary to
protectproprietary inform ation.N opersonm ay refuseaccesstoany authorizedofficer,
em ployeeorauthorizedrepresentativeoftheCity w horequestsaccessforpurposesof
inspectionandw hopresentsappropriatecredentials.N opersonm ay obstruct,ham per,or
interferew ithsuchaninspection.

(o) U nlaw fultoR em oveR ecyclables.Itshallbeunlaw fulforany persontocollectorrem ove
recyclablesthathavebeenplacedby any personatadesignatedcollectionsitefor
collection.T hissubsectionshallnotapply toaCity em ployeeactingw ithinthescopeof
his/herem ploym ent,ortoapersonundercontractw iththeCity ofBaraboo.(1806
04/11/95)

(6) CO L L ECT IO N R EGU L AT IO N S FO R BU IL DIN GS N O T P R O VIDED W IT H CIT Y CO L L ECT IO N S ER VICES .
(a) T heow ner(s)and/oroccupant(s)ofany buildingthatdoesnotreceiveCity collectionof

solidw aste,garbage,refuse,andrecyclablesshall:
1. Arrangeforsuchcollectionby aprivategarbageandrefusecollectionfirm licensed

by theS tateofW isconsinDepartm entofN aturalR esources.
2. Arrangeforprivatecollectionofgarbage,refuse,andrecyclablesinaccordancew ith

theprovisionsofthis§11.07.S uchcollectionshallbeatsufficientintervalsto
protecttheenvironm entassetforthinthis§11.07andshallspecifically arrangefor
collectionservicestobem adeatam inim um ofbi-w eekly provisionstom aintainbi-
w eekly collectionw henaholiday fallsonanorm alcollectionday.

30 of 74



S:\C ou ncil\O rd inances\2020 O RD IN A N C ES\2-25-20 Repealand Recreate Section 11.07 Solid W aste and Recyclable C ollection.d ocx

3. P rovideasufficientnum berofapprovedcontainersforthestorageofgarbageand
refuse generatedby eachbuildingandtofurtherseetoitthatallsolidw aste,
garbage,andrefuseisplacedinsuchcontainers.

4. M aintainallstorageareasforgarbage,refuse,andrecyclablestobekeptina
nuisance-freeandodor-freeconditionandlittershallnotbeallow edtoaccum ulate.

5. Beresponsibleforcleaninguplitter.
6. Beresponsibleforassuringthatallsolidw aste,garbage,refuse,andrecyclablesthat

arekeptstoredorkeptoutsideofabuildingshallbeplacedinacoveredgarbage
canordum pster,inaccessibletorats,m ice,verm in,orscavenginganim alsorbirds.

7. Exceptw hereadum psterisrequired,theow nerofany rentalresidentialproperty
shallberesponsibleforprovidingasufficientnum berofcoveredrefusecontainers
foralltenants.Containersshallconsistofm etalorplasticthatarefly-tight,
w atertight,androdentproof,w ithtight-fittinglidsandsuitablehandles,com m only
referredtoasgarbagecans.M etalgarbagecansshallbeofsufficientthicknessto
resistdentingduringnorm alhandlingby theprivaterefusehauler.P lasticgarbage
cansshallconsistofplasticm aterialnotdam agedby freezingandnotsusceptibleto
m elting.

8. P rovidebulkstoragecontainers,com m only referredtoasdum psters,forany
buildingorprem ises,includingbuildingsusedforresidentialpurposesproducing
solidw aste,garbage,andrefuseinexcessofthree(3)30-gallonplasticgarbagebags
perw eek.Bulkstoragecontainersshallbecoveredcontainers,fly-tight,rodent
proof,andw atertight,butm ay havecleanoutdrainplugs,constructedofheavy
gaugem etalorotherdurablem aterialim pervioustoanim als,capableofbeing
em ptiedw ithouthazard,andequippedw ithdoorsorcoversthataretightfitting.

9. Assurethatallcontainersusedforthestorageofgarbage,refuse,andrecyclables
arew ellm aintainedandthatsharporprotrudingsurfaces,dents,tears,andother
defectsw hichm ay behazardoustothegeneralpublicareim m ediately repaired.

10.Assurethattheprivatecollectionfirm properly deliversallrecyclablem aterialstoa
recyclingprocessingfacility orenduserofrecyclablesandkeepsallrecords,as
needed,todocum entandotherw isecom ply w ithstateandlocalregulations.

11.Beresponsibletokeeprecordsofthedisposalofallsolidw aste,garbage,andrefuse
requiredby statelaw ,includingtheidentificationoftheprivatecollectionfirm ,the
am ountofsolidw aste,garbage,andrefusecollection,theam ountorpercentageof
recyclablescollected,andthedisposalsite.

(7) R EGU L AT IO N O FYAR D W AS T E,L EAVES AN D BR U S H.(168804/22/93)
(a) YardW aste.N opersonshallplaceyardw aste,definedasshrubbery,grassclippings,

leaves,brush,gardenw aste,etc.intocontainersusedfororcontainingsolidw asteor
recycling.Yardw asteshallbedisposedofinalaw fulm annerthatw illnotresultinsuch
w astebeingdepositedina facility designatedforthepurposeofrecyclingandsolid
w astedisposal.T heCity m ay providealocationforthedisposalofsuchyardw aste
specifically forresidentsresidingw ithintheCity ofBaraboom unicipalbordersandm ay
providepickupanddisposalofleavesuptotw otim esperyear.T heP ublicS afety
Com m ittee,afterconsultationw iththeS treetS uperintendent,shallbeauthorizedto
establishandpublishthedatesofsuchcollections.Atnotim em ay shrubbery,garden
w aste,orearthenm aterial(stone,rubble,earth,sod)beplacedcurbsideforcollection
w ithleavesaspartofthesem i-annualcleanup.T heCity reservestherighttoassess
property ow nersthatarefoundinviolationofthisordinanceforaccruedcostsrelatedto
theclean-up.T heCity m ay alsoassessfordam agecausedby unapprovedm aterials
enteringleafdisposalequipm ent.

31 of 74



S:\C ou ncil\O rd inances\2020 O RD IN A N C ES\2-25-20 Repealand Recreate Section 11.07 Solid W aste and Recyclable C ollection.d ocx

(b) Brush.S ee§11.08(M ).T heCity m ay alsoprovidecurbsidebrushpickupforitsresidents.
T heP ublicS afety Com m ittee,afterconsultationw iththeS treetS uperintendent,shallbe
authorizedtoestablishandpublishthedatesofsuchcollection.Curbsidebrushcollection
m ustadheretostandardssetforthby theP ublicS afety Com m ittee.Brushm ustbe
stackedinanorderly m annerw ithcutendsfacingthesam edirection,brushm ustnot
im pedeuponpedestrianw alkw aysorcity streets,brushm ustbefreeofforeignm aterials,
includingbutnotlim itedtohouseholdtrashorrecyclables,gardenoryardw aste,and
lum berorotherbuildingm aterials.Atnotim em ay contractorsplaceitem sforpickup.
Brushplacedcurbsideby contractorsistheresponsibility oftheproperty ow nerofw hich
w orkw asperform ed.T heCity reservestherighttoassessproperty ow nersthatarefound
inviolationofthisordinanceforaccruedcostsrelatedtotheclean-up.T heCity m ay also
assessfordam agecausedby unapprovedm aterialsenteringtheCity’sbrushdisposal
equipm ent.

(c) P lacem entofL argeItem sforCollectionR egulated
1. Exceptw hereperm ittedby em ergency orderissuedby theM ayororCity Council,no

personshallplaceyardw asteforcollectionby theCity orlargeitem sforspecial
cleanupcollectionby theCity inoruponany street,sidew alk,alley,publicright-of-
w ay,park,orotherproperty oftheCity.

2. Inadditiontothepenalty providedby §11.07(10),iftheCity collectsany yardw aste
orlargeitem splacedforcollectioncontrary tothisS ubsection,theactualcostof
rem ovalanddisposal,togetherw ithanadm inistrativefeeequalto10% ofsaidcost,
shallbechargedtotheproperty ow ner.Ifsuchchargesarenotpaidby N ovem ber
15oftheyearthey arebilled,suchcharges,togetherw ithanadditional
adm inistrativefeeforcollectionequalto10% ofthetotalofsuchchargesandfees,
shallbeextendedonthenextsucceedingtax rollasaspecialchargeagainstthe
property affectedandcollectedinthesam em annerasareothertaxes,pursuantto
§66.0627,W is.S tats.

3. Inthissubsection:
a. “L argeItem ” m eansany substance,m aterial,product,appliance,furniture,

junk,debris,refuse,orotherdiscardedthingthatinitsoriginalstateistoo
bigtofitinarecyclingcontainer.

(8) O T HER CO L L ECT IO N R EGU L AT IO N S .
(a) N opersonshallplaceany solidw aste,garbage,refuse,orrecyclablesforcollectiononany

street,alley,orotherpublicplacebefore3 P M oftheday priortotheregularly scheduled
collectionday forcollectionby aprivaterefusecollectionhauler.

(b) N opersonshallthrow ,place,ordepositany solidw aste,garbage,refuse,rubbish,or
recyclablesinany street,alley,publicplace,treebankorprivateproperty w ithintheCity
lim itsexceptinanapprovedcontainerasprovidedinthis§11.07.

(c) N opersonshallthrow ,place,ordepositany solidw aste,garbage,orrefuseinany garbage
containerordum psternotow nedby suchpersonandw ithouttheperm issionor
authorizationoftheow nerofsuchcontainer.

(9) EN FO R CEM EN T .
(a) T heP ublicS afety Com m itteeshallbeauthorizedtom akeregulations,standards,and

schedulesasnecessary tom akeeffectiveallprovisionsofthisS ection.P eriodically,the
S treetS uperintendentordesigneeshallpreparenoticesanddistributeotherinform ation
topersonsandentitiesgeneratingsolidw aste,garbage,refuse,andrecyclablesw ithinthe

32 of 74



S:\C ou ncil\O rd inances\2020 O RD IN A N C ES\2-25-20 Repealand Recreate Section 11.07 Solid W aste and Recyclable C ollection.d ocx

City forthepurposeofinform ingthepublicabouttherequirem entsdictatedby City
ordinances.

(b) Inordertoensurecom pliancew iththelaw softhisstateandrulesandregulations
requiredinthisS ection,theS treetS uperintendentordesigneeisauthorizedtoinspectat
reasonabletim esallphasesofsolidw aste,garbage,refuse,andrecyclablem anagem ent
w ithintheCity.N opersonm ay refuseaccesstotheS treetS uperintendentorany
authorizedofficer,em ployee,orrepresentativeoftheCity w horequestsaccessforthe
purposesofinspectionandw hopresentsappropriatecredentials.N opersonm ay
obstruct,ham per,orinterferew ithsuchaninspection.

(c) Inallinstancesw heresuchinspectionsrevealviolationsofthisS ectionandtheregulations
inthisS ection,orthelaw softhisstate,theS treetS uperintendentordesigneeshallissue
w rittennoticeofeachsuchviolation,statingthereintheviolationfound,thedateand
tim eofsuchviolation,andthecorrectivem easurestobetaken,togetherw iththetim ein
w hichsuchcorrectionshallbem ade.T im elim itssetforthecorrectionofviolationsshall
bereasonableandconsistent.T heS treetS uperintendentordesigneeshallconsidertim e
neededforrepairsorpurchasestocorrectdeficiencies,publichealth,andconsistenttim e
lim itsforlikeviolations.T im elim itsshallnotbegreaterthantenw orkingdaysnorless
than24 hours.Allsuchnoticesshallbekeptinaclearly m arkedfileandshallbeavailable
forpublicinspectionduringregularbusinesshours.

(d) T heS treetS uperintendentordesigneeshallprom ptly reportallviolationsofthissection
toapoliceofficerandapoliceofficershallbeauthorizedtoissueacitationtotheviolator.
Eachviolationandeachday aviolationcontinuesoroccursshallconstituteaseparate
offense.N othinginthissubsectionshallpreventtheCity from m aintainingany
appropriateactiontopreventorrem oveaviolationofany provisionofthissection.T he
issuanceofacitationshallnotprecludeproceedingunderany otherordinanceorlaw
relatingtothesam eorany otherm atter.P roceedingsunderany otherordinanceorlaw
relatingtothesam eorany otherm attershallnotprecludetheissuanceofacitation
underthissubsection.W henevertheCourtfindsadefendantguilty ofaviolationofthis
section,theCourtshallbeauthorizedtograntjudgm entasprovidedin§25.04 ofthis
Code.(204702/13/2001)

(e) Ifany person,includingthosenotprovidedw ithgarbage,refuse,andrecyclablecollection
by theCity andthosereceivinggarbage,refuse,andrecyclablecollectionfrom aprivate
contractedfirm isfoundinviolationofthecollectionandstoragerequirem entsofthis
S ectionandfailstocom ply w ithanotificationand/orcitation,theS treetS uperintendent
ordesigneeshallfurtherbeauthorizedandem pow eredtoorderaspecialcollectionto
rem ovesuchviolation.Inadditiontothepenalty providedby §11.07(8)(a),iftheCity
m akesaspecialcollectionasaresultofaviolationof§11.07,theactualcostofrem oval
anddisposal,togetherw ithanadm inistrativefeeequalto10% ofsaidcostshallbe
chargedtotheproperty ow ner.Ifsuchchargesarenotpaidby N ovem ber15oftheyearin
w hichthey arebilled,suchcharges,togetherw ithanadditionaladm inistrativefeefor
collectionequalto10% ofthetotalcostofsuchchargesandfeesshallbeextendedonthe
nextsucceedingtax rollasaspecialchargeagainsttheproperty affectedandcollectedin
them annerasareothertaxes,pursuantto§66.0627,W is.S tats.N opersonshallusethe
specialcollectionprovisionsofthisS ubsectiontocircum ventrequirem entsforcollection
by aprivatefirm .

(f) Any personw hoshallviolateany oftheprovisionsofthisS ectionshall,uponconviction
thereof,forfeitnotlessthan$10 norm orethan$50 forthefirstoffenseandnotlessthan

33 of 74



S:\C ou ncil\O rd inances\2020 O RD IN A N C ES\2-25-20 Repealand Recreate Section 11.07 Solid W aste and Recyclable C ollection.d ocx

$25 norm orethan$100 forthesecondoffensew ithinoneyear,andnotlessthan$50 nor
m orethan$500 forthethirdandeachsubsequentoffensew ithinoneyear.Inadditionto
aforfeiturethereshallalsobeim posedtheCourtcostsandassessm entsasprovidedby
§25.04(1)ofthisCode.T heone-yearperiodshallbem easuredfrom thedateofthefirst
violationofthissection.

(g) Inadditiontotheforegoingpenalties,theCity reservestherighttorefusecollection
servicetoany property thatisinviolationofoneorm oreprovisionsofthisS ection

2. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as provided by law.

Mayor’s Approval: ________________________

Clerk’s Certification: ________________________

I hereby certify that the foregoing Ordinances were duly passed by the Common Council of
the City of Baraboo on March __, 2020, and is recorded on page ___.

City Clerk: _________________________

34 of 74



Baraboo Fire Department
Monthly Report - January 2020

January Year to Date Totals Year to Date Percentage

Incident Responses 2020 2019 2019 2020 Increase/Decrease

Fire, Other 0 0 0 0 2020

Building Fire 1 1 12 1 2 Fire 9.09%

Fire in Mobile Home used as a Fixed Structure 0 0 0 0 6 Rescue 27.27%

Fire in Structures other than Building 0 0 0 0 1 Haz Mat 4.55%

Cooking Fire 0 0 8 0 3 Alarm 13.64%

Chimney Fire 0 0 0 0 8 Other 36.36%

Vehicle Fire 1 1 8 1 0 Mutual Aid 0.00%

Wildland Fire 0 0 5 0

Trash or Rubbish Fire Contained 0 0 0 0 2019

Outside Rubbish, Trash or Waste Fire 0 0 0 0 33 Fire 8.97%

Dumpster or other Trash Receptacle Fire 0 0 0 0 108 Rescue 29.35%

Outside Storage Fire 0 0 0 0 21 Haz Mat 5.71%

Outside Gas or Vapor Combustion Explosion 0 0 0 0 62 Alarm 16.85%

Medical Assist 0 2 35 0 131 Other 35.60%

Vehicle Crash 4 0 55 4 13 Mutual Aid 3.53%

Motor vehicle/pedestrian crash 1 0 1 1

Search for Person on Land 0 0 1 0

Extrication of Victim(s) from Building/Structure 1 0 0 1

Extrication from Vehicles 0 0 7 0

Extrication, Other 0 0 0 0

Elevator Rescue 0 0 3 0 Total Members 36 *

Water/Ice Rescue 0 0 3 0 Military Leave 1

High Angle Rescue 0 0 3 0 Net Members 35

Hazardous Material 0 2 16 0

Carbon Monoxide Incident 1 1 5 1 * Two new hires in January

Hazardous Call, Other 0 2 24 0

Vehicle Accident - General Cleanup 2 1 10 2

Animal Rescue 0 0 0 0

Water Problem, Other 0 0 1 0

Smoke or Odor Removal 0 1 2 0

Sevice Call, Other 0 1 3 0

Lock-out 0 0 0 0

Assist Police 1 3 14 1

Public Service 0 0 8 0

Unauthorized Burning 0 0 4 0

Authorized Burning 0 1 4 0

Good Intent Call 0 0 23 0

Dispatched/Cancelled 2 1 35 2

No Incident found on arrival at dispatch address 2 0 0 2

Wrong Location 0 0 0 0

Smoke Scare, Odor of Smoke 0 0 1 0

Steam, Vapor, Fog or Dust thought to be Smoke 1 0 0 1

Malicious Alarm 0 1 2 0

Bomb Threat 0 0 0 0

Alarm 1 2 42 1

Carbon Monoxide Alarm 2 4 18 2

Lightning Strike 0 0 2 0

Severe Weather Standby 0 0 0 0

Mutual Aid - City 0 0 9 0

Mutual Aid - Rural 0 0 4 0

Mutual Aid Bx Alarms System (MABAS) 2 0 0 2

Totals 22 24 368 22 -8.33%

0 Exposure Fires

368 Total Incidents

Incident Responses by Municipality Total Incidents Percent

City of Baraboo 13 59.09% 13 59.09%

Village of West Baraboo 2 9.09% 2 9.09%

Town of Baraboo 3 13.64% 3 13.64%

Town of Fairfield 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Town of Greenfield 2 9.09% 2 9.09%

Town of Sumpter 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Mutual Aid - City 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Mutual Aid - Rural 0 0.00% 0 0.00%

Mutual Aid Bx Alarms System (MABAS) 2 9.09% 2 9.09%

Totals 22 100.00% 22 100.00%

Fire Department Membership

35 of 74



Baraboo Fire Department

Monthly Report - January 2020

Fire Inspections January February March April May June July August Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec

City of Baraboo 78

Village of West Baraboo 117

Town of Baraboo 1

Town of Fairfield 2

Town of Greenfield 0

Town of Sumpter 0

Totals 198 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Inspections Year to Date 198

Number Number Number Total

Fire Prevention Education - Current Month of Activities of Adults of Children Participants

Fire Extinguisher and Fire Safety Training 0 0 0 0

Fire Safety Presentations 1 9 0 9

Fire Safety House Training 0 0 0 0

Other (Open House) 0 0 0 0

Grand Totals 1 9 0 9

9

9

Number of Number of

Smoke Alarms CO Alarms Total

Install Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarms 0 0 0

0 Year to Date Total

Total Fire Safety Contacts Year to Date

36 of 74



City of Baraboo Treasurer's Report Investment 2020.xlsx 2/11/2020Month January 2020

Bank Balance Bank

BANK INVESTMENTS Type Fund Account Term Maturity Rate BNB LGIP WF/JB CFB SUM BWD PDS FBB RCB CLARE WCCU ICB CCF BMO FICA SCHWAB Grand Total

Alma Waite Account NOW account 820 104502957 Daily 0.49% 9,680.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,680.55

Alma Waite Trust Fund Cert of Deposit 820 6275826 36 months 7/8/21 2.85% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160,000.00

3861228 33 months 11/21/20 *2.05% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 105,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 105,000.00

54962-27444 30 months 8/21/20 1.99% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 103,006.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 103,006.15

6900492354 31 months 9/22/20 2.25% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 110,000.00 0.00 0.00 110,000.00

14890100-102 21 months 6/23/20 2.80% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 152,132.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 152,132.92

40032553 30 months 10/16/20 2.45% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 114,775.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 114,775.08

7070300 24 months 10/16/21 2.30% 135,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 135,000.00

Investment Pool 820 856206-3 Daily 1.61% 0.00 38,566.43 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 38,566.43

Dana Investment 820 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250,000.00 250,000.00

CDA-Grant Accounts Checking 220 1000934/1146394 Daily none 10.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.00

CDA-Loan Accounts (blank) 983 (blank) (blank) 813,041.07 169,539.66 0.00 141,528.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,124,109.07

Fire Benefit Fund Investment 900 126696102 Daily 0.10% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 650.23 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 650.23

Cert of Deposit 900 6900470891 18 months 6/1/20 2.62% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 81,740.04 0.00 0.00 81,740.04

Investment Pool 900 856206-4 Daily 1.61% 0.00 18,795.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18,795.13

Fire Equipment Fund Cert of Deposit 420 109465199 24 months 3/23/20 2.16% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 153,240.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 153,240.00

30087 36 months 3/28/21 2.47% 0.00 0.00 0.00 155,642.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 155,642.02

14890100-104 27 months 3/20/21 2.97% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 133,589.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 133,589.51

14890100-103 21 months 6/23/20 2.80% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 152,132.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 152,132.92

6380310 9 months 6/19/20 1.75% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00

14890100-107 25 months 10/14/21 2.33% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 40,253.38 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 40,253.38

40036181 13 months 6/17/20 2.33% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 152,202.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 152,202.94

Dana Investment 420 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 350,000.00 350,000.00

Friends of the Library Savings 940 103035891 Daily 0.10% 25,011.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,011.50

General Cash Account Checking / NOW 100 1000306/9830 Daily .04%/.49% 2,023,877.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,023,877.55

Deposit Placement 100 101066015 Daily 0.49% 2,256,906.56 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,256,906.56

General Fund Money Market 100 908-640 Daily 0.18% 0.00 0.00 204,782.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 204,782.33

86190136 Daily 0.90% 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,465,913.58 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,465,913.58

163563 Daily 1.35% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 133,806.83 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 133,806.83

7481010 Daily 0.25% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 88,013.93 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 88,013.93

471582 Daily 1.10% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 262,945.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 262,945.57

10080968 Daily 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 241,093.31 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 241,093.31

525450 Daily 0.60% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 105,441.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 105,441.60

54962-07 Daily 0.80% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,726.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29,726.59

5031443 Daily 0.70% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200,650.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200,650.75

20032292 Daily 1.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 262,860.83 0.00 0.00 0.00 262,860.83

2061232 Daily 0.65% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 109,406.23 0.00 0.00 109,406.23

Cert of Deposit 100 3846829 24 months 9/12/21 2.05% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

109508099 24 months 6/08/20 2.45% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

40032552 24 months 4/6/20 2.30% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

1800441 24 months 9/12/20 2.40% 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

1800522 18 months 3/20/20 2.33% 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00

0100 16 months 2/22/20 2.48% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

14890100-100 27 months 5/25/21 2.97% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 153,827.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 153,827.11

1802640 12 months 3/28/20 2.50% 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

6375642 13 months 7/25/20 2.35% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

1386300 14 months 10/21/20 2.31% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00

1804491 9 months 5/28/20 2.05% 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 125,000.00

155424 24 months 12/11/21 1.95% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

1805166 12 months 12/11/20 1.85% 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

7758001399 6 months 7/16/20 1.65% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00

Investment Pool 100 856206-1 Daily 1.61% 0.00 2,117,499.39 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,117,499.39

Deposit Placement 100 104791111271 Daily 1.55% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,013,119.35 0.00 2,013,119.35

10090686 Daily 0.85% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,586,919.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,586,919.89

Dana Investment 100 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

General Fund-Bond Issue Money Market 100 104557859 Daily 1.65% 871,522.46 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 871,522.46

Investment Pool 100 856206-2 Daily 1.61% 0.00 194,186.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 194,186.94

Library Building Fund Cert of Deposit 851 107070188 12 month 3/28/20 2.42% 152,751.59 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 152,751.59

Investment Pool 851 856206-6 Daily 1.61% 0.00 364,048.22 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 364,048.22

Dana Investment 851 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250,000.00 250,000.00

Library Segregated Fund NOW account 850 104551192 Daily 0.49% 121,886.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 121,886.35

Library Segregated Trust FundCert of Deposit 850 1802646 12 months 3/28/20 2.50% 0.00 0.00 0.00 248,277.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 248,277.76

54962-105 13 months 5/23/20 2.53% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 227,854.05 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 227,854.05

Park House Account NOW account 890 101001035 Daily 0.49% 11,838.47 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,838.47

Park Impact Fees Cert of Deposit 250 40032035 24 months 3/28/21 2.56% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 51,618.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 51,618.92

40032677 24 months 5/2/20 2.30% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 41,560.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 41,560.42

Park Kuenzi Estate Cert of Deposit 830 6264646 24 months 7/22/20 2.65% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,294.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,294.00

14890100-105 23 months 6/25/21 2.47% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,108.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,108.78

Park Segregated Fund Cert of Deposit 870 1802520 12 months 3/12/20 2.50% 0.00 0.00 0.00 41,598.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 41,598.51

NOW account 840/870 1000-888 Daily 0.49% 101,359.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 101,359.35

Sewer Debt Service NOW account 960 104506359 Daily 0.49% 217,847.75 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 217,847.75

Sewer Depreciation Fund Cert of Deposit 960 54962-106 13 Months 8/30/20 2.34% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 181,732.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 181,732.84

Sewer Equipment Replacement FundCert of Deposit 960 54962-103 13 Months 2/29/20 2.53% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 243,373.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 243,373.99

1804398 9 month 5/19/20 2.05% 0.00 0.00 0.00 166,322.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 166,322.41

NOW account 960 104522281 Daily 0.49% 172,136.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 172,136.50

Dana Investment 960 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 400,000.00 400,000.00

Sewer General Cert of Deposit 960 54962-0102 16 months 03/05/20 2.48% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 162,115.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 162,115.67

1373100 14 months 05/15/20 2.30% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250,101.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250,101.21

1802514 12 months 3/12/20 2.50% 0.00 0.00 0.00 310,347.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 310,347.21

Investment Pool 960 856206-7 Daily 1.61% 0.00 909,518.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 909,518.36

NOW account 960 104550099 Daily 0.49% 427,577.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 427,577.01

Dana Investment 960 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00

Stormwater Dana Investment 950 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 150,000.00 150,000.00

Stormwater Equip ReplacementMoney Market 950 104565819 Daily 0.49% 58,637.26 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 58,637.26

Utilities Account Checking 960/970 101000292 Daily 0.04% 429,822.65 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 429,822.65

Water General Money Market 970 101153201 Daily 0.49% 340,443.83 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 340,443.83

Cert of Deposit 970 40032034 15 months 6/28/20 2.56% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 310,909.42 0.00 0.00 0.00 310,909.42

54962-0101 16 months 03/05/20 2.48% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 312,873.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 312,873.90

7758000602 18 months 6/7/20 2.87%** 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 203,252.15 0.00 0.00 203,252.15

54962-0104 13 months 4/18/20 2.53% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 206,929.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 206,929.08

Investment Pool 970 856206-8 Daily 1.61% 0.00 454,953.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 454,953.13

Dana Investment 970 3694-7092 (blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 275,000.00 275,000.00

Grand Total 8,169,350.45 4,267,107.26 204,782.33 3,204,629.83 642,694.85 538,806.83 262,945.57 391,253.93 2,828,013.20 480,542.81 1,617,612.27 646,944.75 1,083,927.61 654,398.42 2,013,119.35 2,775,000.00 29,781,129.46

27.43% 14.33% 0.69% 10.76% 2.16% 1.81% 0.88% 1.31% 9.50% 1.61% 5.43% 2.17% 3.64% 2.20% 6.76% 9.32% Actual

Bank Rating **** **** ***** ***** ***** ***** **** ***** ***** ***** ***** *** ****

FDIC / State Insured 3,719,947.63 Unlimited 1,300,000.00 791,528.34 650,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 Unlimited 650,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 650,000.00 Unlimited Unlimited 18,742,085$

Collateral 6,837,636.00 2,553,151.00 1,000,000.00 496,000.00 8,264,044$

Brokerage Securites 2,775,000$

Maximum Investment 10,557,583.63 3,344,679.34 1,650,000.00 1,146,000.00 29,781,129$
Lori J Laux, Treasurer

37 of 74



TREASURER'S INVESTMENT REPORT for January 2020

Benchmarks:

Avg Term LGIP 1.61%
Total Receipts: 7,846,704.18 General Funds: 4.6 M 1.32%

Utility Funds: 12.4 M 1.75% 90-day T-bill: 1.58%
Total Disbursments: 6,894,060.44 Segregated Funds: 23.7 M 2.23%

Securities w/Dana 4.04 years 2.44% 6M CD: 1.18%
All Funds: 9.1 M 1.55% 12M CD: 1.52%

Liquid: 67.0% 18M CD: 1.75%
Term: 33.0%

Policy Objectives:
Safety: ▪ $2,775,000 has been invested in marketable securities with Dana Investments, these are not guaranteed.

Liquidity: ▪ Investing in CD's when good rates are available.
Yield: ▪ Yields are unstable

TRANSACTIONS
# Action Type Identification Bank Acct # Note Term Maturity Date Rate Amount Interest

(1) OPEN CD General BMO 7758001399 Auto-renew 6 mos 7/16/2020 1.65% 150,000.00 Pd to MM

Comments: Extension of the Money Market to improve return

INVESTMENT ADVISOR TRANSACTIONS
Yield to Worst

# Action Type Identification Price Rating Note Term/WAL Maturity Date Yield - Maturity Amount Interest

(1) BUY FH ARM 840899 101.8750 Not rated US12M+1.619 3.24 years 11/1/2045 2.23% / 2.42% 190,123.82 Monthly P&I
next reset 23 months 25% prepay 54 days

Comments: Regular principal payments

Average Rate of Return on Current Deposits

38 of 74



2019 
 

 

 

City of Baraboo 
Police Department 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annual Report 
 

 

 

 

 

The purpose of the Baraboo Police Department is to provide 

unbiased police services that support our community and help it to 

grow through the reduction of crime and the fear it causes; while 

promoting a safe environment.

39 of 74



 
 
 

Emergency  
 

911 
 
 
 
 

Business Office 
 

Baraboo Police Department 
101 South Boulevard 
Baraboo, WI  53913 

(608) 355-2720 
 
 
 
 

Online 
 

www.cityofbaraboo.com 
 
 
 
 

Chief’s E-mail 
 

mschauf@cityofbaraboo.com 
 
 
 
 

 

40 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
Chief’s Message ....................................................................................................1 
 
Our Purpose ..........................................................................................................2 
 
Oath of Honor ........................................................................................................3 
 
City Officials  

Mayor .........................................................................................................4 
Council .......................................................................................................4 
Police and Fire Commission .......................................................................4 

 
Employees 

Organizational Structure .............................................................................5 
Current Employees ................................................................................. 6-9 

 
Significant Events ................................................................................................ 10 
 
Budget 

Budget Summary ...................................................................................... 11 
Grants ....................................................................................................... 12 
 

Projects and Programs  
Long-Range Plan ...................................................................................... 13 
2019 Strategies ........................................................................................ 13 
2020 Strategies ........................................................................................ 14 

 
Training ............................................................................................................... 15 
 
Statistics 

Calls for Service ....................................................................................... 16 
Uniform Crime Reports ............................................................................. 17 
Persons Arrested ...................................................................................... 18 
Underage Alcohol ..................................................................................... 18 
Traffic Citations ......................................................................................... 19 
Traffic Warnings ....................................................................................... 19 
Parking Tickets ......................................................................................... 20 
Traffic Crashes ......................................................................................... 20 
Use of Force ............................................................................................. 21 
 
 

 

 

41 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 1 

 
Chief’s Message 

 
 Thank you for reading the 2019 Baraboo Police 
Department Annual Report.   
 
It is important that as you review the data laid out on the next few 
pages, you remember that the numbers represent people.  Each 
call for service involved citizens and visitors who needed police 
assistance in some way.  It is with this focus that you will 
understand the direction we are pushing as an agency.   
 
I am proud to report that in 2019, the Department successfully re-
accredited with the Wisconsin Law Enforcement Accreditation 
Group (WILEAG).  The evaluation consisted of an in person 
review by peers in the field, and again confirmed that the 
Department is among the best in the State!  I am proud of the 
work and accomplishment of maintaining the WILEAG 
certification, but even more proud of what it means for our citizens 
and staff.  
 
I recently saw a quote about looking back: “It is okay to look back, 
just don’t stare.”  This needs to be a mantra for us as we face the 
future and the challenges it will bring, both as an agency and as 
individuals. So I request that as you look back at the numbers 
represented in this report for 2019, and see the good and bad in 
our community represented, but that you don't get stuck staring in 
the rear view mirror.  We must move forward and onto the next 
challenges.   
  
On behalf of the men and women of the Department, thank you for 
the privilege to serve.  To the men and women of the Department, 
thank you for all you did in 2019, and here is to looking to the next 
year and beyond!  
 

 

 
 

Mark R. Schauf 
Chief of Police     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 2 

Our Purpose 

 

To provide professional unbiased police services that 
support our community and help it to grow through the 

reduction of crime and the fear it causes; while promoting 
a safe environment. 

 

We recognize that to fulfill this purpose, we have an 
essential duty to: 

Treat all people with dignity and respect; 
 

Act honestly, ethically, and with integrity; 
 

Be accountable for our actions; 
 

Identify and help solve community problems that are related to our policing 
responsibilities; 

 
Protect the constitutional rights to liberty, equality, and justice for all people; 

 
Protect those who are in danger of physical harm and provide aid to those who 

cannot care for themselves; 
 

Facilitate the safe movement of people and vehicles; 
 

Act within the limits of state and federal law, and our policies; 
 

Provide education and information to the public to help reduce the risk of 
victimization and foster an understanding of our police function; 

 
Anticipate and be prepared for emergencies; and 

 
Provide for the professional growth of our employees.  

 
 

43 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 3 

 
Baraboo Police Department 

 
Oath of Honor 

 

Baraboo police officers are sworn into office using our oath.  It includes the oath 
required by law, but also includes a promise to uphold our code of ethics and for each 
employee to hold every other employee accountable to the same standard. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Taking this oath is our declaration that we intend to provide police services that adhere 
to the highest ethical standards.  We are proud to join law enforcement agencies across 
the country as an “oath of honor agency.”   

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Our Oath 
 

Having been appointed as a Police Officer or other employee of the 
City of Baraboo Police Department, I swear that I will support the 
Constitution of the United States of America and the Constitution 
of the State of Wisconsin, and will faithfully and impartially 
discharge the duties of my office to the best of my ability. 

 
I swear that I will abide by the Code of Ethics adopted by the City of 

Baraboo Police Department. 
 
On my honor, I will never betray my badge, my integrity, my character, 

or the public trust.  I will always have the courage to hold myself 
and others accountable for our actions.  I will always uphold the 
constitution, my community, and the agency I serve. 

 
So help me God. 

                                                               Baraboo Police Department 
 

44 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 4 

 
 
 
 

City Officials 
 

 

 

 

Mayor 
 

Mike Palm 
 
 
 

Common Council 
 

Phil Wedekind, First District 
Tom Kolb, Second District 

Michael Plautz, Third District 
Scott Sloan, Fourth District 

Joel Petty, Fifth District 
John Ellington, Sixth District 

John Alt, Seventh District 
Michael Zolper, Eighth District (left 2019) 

Heather Kierzek, Eight District (appointed 2019) 
Dennis Thurow, Ninth District 

 
 
 

Police and Fire Commission 
 

Paul Kujak, President 
Dennis Kluge, Secretary 

J. Merle Alt, Commissioner 
Paul Kelly, Commissioner 

Robert Madalon, Commissioner 
Brian Getschman, Commissioner 

 
 

 
 
 

45 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 5 

 
Organizational Structure 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Mayor 

Chief of Police 
Police and Fire Commission 

Lieutenant of Police 

Community Services Officer 

Community Services Officer 

School Crossing Guards (4) 

Administrative Assistant/ 
Property Clerk 

Administrative Assistant 
 

Administrative Assistant 

Officer 

Officer 

Officer 

Officer 

Officer 

Officer 

Officer 

Officer 

Officer 

Officer 

Detective 
Sergeant 

Detective 

School 
Resource 

Officer (JYMS) 

Detective 

Day Patrol 1 
Sergeant 

Night Patrol 2 
Sergeant 

Administrative Assistant 
 

Detective 

Night Patrol 1 
Sergeant 

Day Patrol 2 

Sergeant 

Officer 

Officer 

Officer 

Officer 

City Administrator 

Officer 

Officer 

Officer 

Officer 

Officer 

Officer 

School 
Resource 

Officer (HS) 

Captain of Police 

46 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 6 

Employees 
 

Current Employees 
 

Mark R. Schauf  Chief of Police 
 

Rob Sinden   Captain of Police 
 

Ryan La Broscian  Lieutenant of Police 
    Firearms Instructor 
    Field Training Coordinator 
    Employee Recognition Committee 
    Firearms Armorer 
 
Mark Lee   Patrol Sergeant 
     Grant Coordinator 
 

Matthew Gilbert  Patrol Sergeant 
     DAAT Instructor 
     Emergency Response Team Member 
     Mentorship Program Coordinator 
     Fitness Coordinator 
     Midwest Tactical Officers Association Board Member 
 

Ryan Werner   Patrol Sergeant 
     DAAT Instructor 
     WILEAG Accreditation Manager 
     Sauk County Adult Treatment Court Representative 
     Baraboo Area Homeless Shelter Representative 
 

Mark Wichner   Patrol Sergeant 
     ALICE Instructor 
     Firearms Instructor 
     Field Training Officer 
     Mentor 
     Glock Armorer 
     Remington 870 Armorer 
     AR15/M4 Armorer 
 

Jeff Shimon   Detective Sergeant 
     Sauk County Triad Representative 
     Firearms Instructor 
     Field Training Officer 
     Homeland Security Threat Liaison Officer 
     Sexual Assault Response Team Member 
     Sauk County Drug Task Force 
     Evidence Technician 
     ALICE Instructor 
     Baraboo Police Department Union Vice President 
     Glock Armorer 
     Cellebrite Technician 

Child Forensic Interviewer 
Employee Recognition Committee 
Leads Online Coordinator 

47 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 7 

George Bonham  Detective 
     Sauk County Drug Task Force Member 
     Sexual Assault Response Team Member 
     Narcotics Testing Instructor 
     Property Officer 
     Arson Investigator 
     Evidence Technician 
 

David Frie   Detective 
     Child Abduction Response Team Member 
     Sexual Assault Response Team Member 
     Evidence Technician 
     Internet Crimes Against Children Investigator 

Child Forensic Interviewer 
     Arson Investigator  
 

Erik Oakeson   Detective 
     Emergency Response Team Member 
     Evidence Technician 
     Sauk County Drug Task Force 
     Mentor 
     Preliminary Breath Test Calibrator 
     Field Training Officer 
     Chemical Munitions Instructor 
     Pulse Tactical Fitness Coach  
        
 

Mike Pichler   School Resource Officer 
     Emergency Response Team Leader 
     ALICE Instructor 
     Ballistic Shield Instructor 
 
Amanda Sabol  School Resource Officer 
     Child Forensic Interviewer 
     Sexual Assault Response Team Member 
     Field Training Officer 
     Mentor 
     Critical Incident Negotiator Team Member 

Employee Recognition Committee 
Critical Incident Stress Management Team Member 

 
Nick Defiel   Patrol Officer 
     UW-Baraboo Representative 
     Bike Patrol Equipment Manager 
 
Jessica Pichler  Patrol Officer 
     Families Come First Board Member 

Field Training Officer 
Sexual Assault Response Team Member 
Child Forensic Interviewer 
Employee Recognition Committee 
Sauk County CCR/SART Committee Member 
Sauk County I Team Committee Member 
Hope House/Domestic Violence Representative 

48 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 8 

Jeremy Drexler  Patrol Officer 
     Evidence Technician 
     Cellebrite Technician 
 
Mark Creighton  Patrol Officer 
     Canine Handler 
     Field Training Officer 
     Emergency Response Team Member 
     Drone Operator 
     Union President 
 
 

Trent Bentilla   Patrol Officer 
     Field Training Officer 
     Sex Offender Compliance Officer 
     Mentor 
     Fitness Coordinator 
 
Nate Lund   Patrol Officer 
     Emergency Vehicle Operations Instructor 
     Sexual Assault Response Team Member 
     Evidence Technician 
     Radar/Laser Instructor 
     TRACS Administrator & Instructor 
     Schedule App Administrator & Instructor 
     Mach Administrator & Instructor 
     Union Secretary/Treasurer 
     Narco Pouch Instructor 
     Glock Armorer 
     Vehicle Contact Instructor 
 
Brandon Vrchota  Patrol Officer 
     Field Training Officer 
      
Jonathan Connely  Patrol Officer 
     Field Training Officer 
     Taser Instructor 
     Mentor 

Employee Recognition Committee 
Preliminary Breath Test Calibrator 

 
Brian Voltz   Patrol Officer 
     Sexual Assault Response Team Member 
     Critical Incident Negotiator Team Member 
     Field Training Officer 
     Taser Instructor 
     Officer Suicide Prevention Instructor 
 
Nick Burch   Patrol Officer 
 
 
 
 

49 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 9 

 
Carl Ustupski   Patrol Officer 
     Drug Recognition Expert Instructor 
     Standardized Field Sobriety Testing Instructor 
     Active Shooter Response Instructor 
     Tracs Administrator 
     Sauk County Drug Task Force 
     Field Training Officer 
     Emergency Vehicle Operations Instructor 
     Civilian Response to Active Shooters Event Instructor 
     ARIDE Instructor 
     DITEP Instructor 
 
Megan Dorner   Patrol Officer 
 

Brendon Meyer  Patrol Officer 
 
Ian Carroll   Patrol Officer 
 
Jamie Wepking  Patrol Officer 
 
Scott Smith   Patrol Officer 
 

Gordie Ringelstetter   Community Service Officer 
     Weed Commissioner 
     Humane Officer 
 
Allison Goetz   Community Service Officer 
     Weed Commissioner  
     Humane Officer 
 
John Statz   Community Service Officer 
     Weed Commissioner 
     Humane Officer 
 
Linda Wiese   Administrative Assistant 

 
Trina Cromwell   Administrative Assistant & Property Clerk 
     Mentor 

 
Dori Helms   Administrative Assistant 

 
Erika Ringstad   Administrative Assistant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

50 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 10 

Significant Events 
 
February 20  Officers executed a search warrant on 1st Street. Over one pound 
of marijuana as well as oxycodone and paraphernalia were seized from this location. 
Three subjects were charged in relation to the investigation. 
 
March 3  Officers were dispatched to 8th Avenue for a check welfare. Reports 
were that the subject was going to kill someone and then kill himself. The subject 
barricaded himself in the residence for a period of time before being taken into custody 
without issue.  
 
March 31  Officers were dispatched to Walmart for a check welfare. Upon 
arrival, officers encountered a subject who became uncooperative and assaulted an 
officer, resulting in a minor injury. The suspect then fled the scene. The suspect was 
later located by another officer and resisted being taken into custody, resulting in that 
officer being injured as well.  
 
April 18  Officers executed two search warrants at a duplex on 2nd Avenue. 
Through the course of the warrant execution and investigation, several grams of 
methamphetamine were seized. Two subjects were charged in relation to the 
investigation. 
 
May 30  Officers were dispatched to a report of a subject pointing a gun at 
another subject. Upon arrival, officers observed subject with a firearm in his lap. Officers 
were able to convince the subject to put the weapon down and he was taken into 
custody without issue. 
 
July 3   Officers were dispatched to Jim’s Gun Shop for the theft of two 
firearms. During the course of the investigation one gun was recovered in the 
possession of a convicted felon. Another subject was charged in the theft of the 
firearms. 
 
August 10  Officers were dispatched to the Mini Warehouse Storage units on 
Lynn Avenue for multiple units that were broken into. After a lengthy investigation one 
subject was referred to the district attorney on multiple counts of burglary and theft. 
 
August 18  Officers were dispatched to Baraboo Motors for the theft of a motor 
vehicle. Upon arrival, officers located a vehicle abandoned by the suspect that had also 
been stolen. After a lengthy investigation involving multiple jurisdictions, three subjects 
were referred to the district attorney for charges. 
 
September 11 Officers were dispatched to Menards for the report of a subject who 
had pointed a gun at another subject. In the course of the investigation one subject was 
arrested for endangering safety with the use of a dangerous weapon. 
 
   

51 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 11 

Budget 
 

Budget Summary   
 
The 2019 police department budget from local property taxes was approximately 3.8 
million dollars.  With a staff of 35 employees, labor was our highest expense.  The 
majority of our remaining costs were for equipping, training, and otherwise supplying 
that labor.   

 
 

 General Operations 
 Personnel (wages, salaries, and costs) 2,488,085 
 Equipment, supplies, other expenses  292,813 
 Total $2,780,898 
 
Detectives, School Liaison 
 Personnel (wages, salaries, and costs) 596,658 
 Equipment, supplies, other expenses 12,900 
 Total $609,558 
 
Records and Support 
 Personnel (wages, salaries, and costs) 280,574 
 Equipment, supplies, other expenses 101,000 
 Total $381,574 
 
Animal Control 
 Personnel (included in general operations) 0  
 Equipment, supplies, other expenses 2,250 
 Total $2,250 
 
Capital Expenditures 
 Vehicles 30,000 
 Equipment 41,100 
 Total $71,100 
 
 
Total Police Budget $3,845,380   

     
    

Three officers were added in 2019 along with one community service officer due to 
departures and retirements. No other staffing increases necessitated by population 
changes are expected in the next five years.   

 
 
 
 

52 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 12 

 
Grants 
 
The police department participated in several grant programs.  The traffic grant 
programs are targeted towards reducing operating while intoxicated as well as 
distracted driving.  
 

Type Source Use Amount 

    

Ballistic Vest U.S. Department of Justice Matching grant for replacement body armor  
$2,800 

Seatbelt 
Grant 

National Highway Traffic 
Safety Administration 

Grant to increase seat belt usage 
$2,000 

OWI Grant National Highway Traffic 
Safety Administration 

Grant to reduce OWI’s 
$5,000 

Bar Buddies National Highway Traffic 
Safety Administration 

Grant for Bar Buddies to help reduce OWI’s 
$3,000 

TOTAL GRANT REVENUE $12,800 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 13 

 
Projects and Programs 

 
Long-Range Plan 
 
Our long-range plans are based on our purpose statement.  That statement identifies 
two essential goals:  

 
A. Reduce crime and the opportunity to commit crime 
B. Promote a sense of safety in our community    

 
 
2019 strategies 
 
 
The strategies used in 2019 for achieving these goals included: 

 

 Continue work on traffic enforcement. Maintain or improve officer-
initiated traffic to reduce traffic crashes and increase driving safety. 
 

 

 Increase parking enforcement 
CY 2019 saw an improvement from 2018, but there needs to remain a focus 
on the enforcement of parking issues and issued citations.  There are 
contributing factors, but we need to apply directed enforcement to this issue 
before it becomes a problem and accomplished this goal.  This includes 
ensuring availability of machines for officers, adherence to alternate side 
parking issue and times of day for violations, as well as directed enforcement 
of parking issues that affect the city. 
 

 Develop Municipal Court for City of Baraboo 
The City has used Circuit Court for all non-criminal proceedings related to 
violations of traffic law and City Ordinance.  By developing a Municipal Court 
in the new building, the City can retain some of the monies paid to the 
County, reduce the fines levied for some violations and provide more 
intervention and deferred prosecution options to the City Attorney with the 
end goal of compliance being reached. We will be working to obtain the 
software from Central Square to be able to support the Clerk of Court option 
and train staff. Work with Attorney on developing the process for court. Have 
an election for Judge to fill position. Work with Clerk’s office for this position. 
This is still in development and will be a goal for CY2020. 

 
 
 
 
 

54 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 14 

2020 Strategies 
 

In addition to continuing the strategies implemented in 2019, we intend to adopt the 
following in 2020: 
 
 

 Continue work on traffic enforcement. Maintain or improve officer-
initiated traffic to reduce traffic crashes and increase driving safety. 
This includes maintaining consistent enforcement for contacts to include 
moving violations, traffic citations, and OWI cases. Continue work with 
county-wide grants for OWI and seatbelts. Patrol should identify specific 
enforcement opportunities with staffing to have directed patrol. Examples 
include crosswalk enforcement, traffic light and stop sign violations, and 
seatbelt use. 
 

 Complete hiring and promotional processes to bring department back 
to full staff, develop recruiting strategies for future vacancies. 
Complete hiring process to create an eligibility list for the Police & Fire 
Commission to make appointments with expedited process. Work to support 
FTOs as they train new staff. Work to develop consistent recruiting & training 
for officers. Review possibility of training employment contracts to sponsor 
an officer through the police academy.  
 

 Increase parking enforcement from CY 2019 
Ensure deployment of parking machines to have availability for officers. This 
may require addition of more systems or some type of paper back up. 
Continue adherence to alternate parking issues and times of day for 
violations. Continue working on downtown parking issues. 
 

 Implementation of new RMS software 
Work with the county to develop the server base to support RMS access by 
BPD. Develop consistency for current data entry to be prepared for digital 
conversion to new RMS. This is inclusive of an evidence module that will 
read and work with current bar code system. Train key staff to become 
Subject Matter Experts (SME) for the system going forward. Develop training 
plan for all staff. Have full conversion and use of the new RMS by second 
quarter of 2020. This will give shared data and true CAD. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

55 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 15 

Training 
 
Training for police department employees in 2019 included the following: 
 

 Type Function Hours 

Field Training Initial training of new employees 
 

1461 

In-Service Training Annual county-wide training 
Quarterly training for all employees 
Monthly firearms training 
Other periodic training, hours listed per officer 

40 

Specialized Training for individual employees, based on need 1699 

TOTAL HOURS 3,200 

 
Field training is conducted by our specially trained officers.  They share with new 
employees the knowledge and skills required to provide police services to our 
community.  The training lasts sixteen weeks and is in addition to pre-service (Police 
Academy) training required by the Department of Justice Training and Standards 
Bureau. 
 
In-service training sessions are held quarterly.  This allows training to be offered on new 
concepts, laws, and equipment on a timely basis.  Most of our in-service training is 
developed and conducted by our staff and some is provided by other trainers.   
 
Specialized training is purchased from outside vendors.  It includes general law 
enforcement, managements, tactical, investigative, and other training.  

 

 
 

Training

Field Training Inservice Specialized

56 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 16 

22% Statistics 
 
 
Calls for Service 
 
Our total calls for service reflect an aggregate number of most matters handled by our 
department.  This includes all crime reports, arrests, citations, traffic crashes, and other 
calls to the police.  It is used as a general measure of total “incidents” handled by the 
department.  It does not include parking citations and it considers an event that includes 
multiple activities to be one incident.  For example, a call to the police about a 
disturbance that results in several arrests is scored as one call for service. While total 
number of calls have fluctuated from year to year, the department has seen an overall 
average increase in the number of calls for service. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8200

8400

8600

8800

9000

9200

9400

9600

9800

10000

10200

10400

2012
10016

2013
9658

2014
9886

2015
9423

2016
9919

2017
10267

2018
9019

2019
9270

Calls for Service

Calls for Service

57 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 17 

Uniform Crime Reports 
 
 
Uniform Crime Reports are used to measure serious crimes and are submitted to the 
FBI on a monthly basis.  These reports track specific offenses and have been collected 
for these same offenses since 1929.  While a reflection of serious crimes, total rates are 
driven by theft reports because the number of thefts vastly outnumbers all other crimes.  
This is true in most municipalities.  In addition, the UCR data does not track other types 
of offenses that are dangerous and frequently occurring, such as driving while impaired 
and other serious traffic offenses. UCR also only collects data on the most serious 
offense that occurs during that call. 
 
The rate of most serious crimes other than theft has been on a generally downward 
trend for more than four years. Sex offense crimes have been on a generally upward 
trend for the last three years. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Total 466 431 346 461 415 407 451 417

Arson 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 0

Theft 388 359 313 387 349 333 319 302

Burglary 52 46 24 48 40 43 35 43

Assaults 19 15 7 24 16 14 81 55

Sex Offenses 4 7 2 1 8 11 16 15

Robbery 2 3 0 0 2 4 0 2

Homicide 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800
900

1000

UCR Statistics

58 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 18 

Persons Arrested 
 
The number of individual criminal and ordinance violations cited by officers is reported 
here.  In instances where a person was arrested and issued two or more notices of 
appearance for separate violations of law, each notice is counted individually.  

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Underage Alcohol Offenses 
 

Ages 17 through 20 18 

Age 16 or under 9 

Procuring 1 

Total Underage alcohol citations 28 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Disorderly conduct 128 

Drug offenses 79 

Truancy 296 

Theft 143 

Obstructing or resisting an officer 42 

Tobacco violations 13 

Assault 19 

Curfew 16 

Alcohol offense 36 

Bail jumping 50 

Criminal damage to property 41 

Animal Violations 15 

Trespassing 25 

Weapons violations 6 

Sexual assault 4 

Prowling  1 

Burglary 2 

Recklessly Endangering Safety 2 

All other violations 113 

Total notices of court appearance 1,039 

59 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 19 

 
Traffic Citations 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Traffic Warnings 
 

Speeding 548 

Lighting violations 817 

Failure to stop for stop sign 85 

Registration Violations 295 

Defective exhaust 23 

Deviating from traffic lane 33 

Improper turn 68 

Operating left of center 6 

Failure to obey sign, signal, or officer 43 

Failure to yield right of way 11 

Display of power 0 

All other violations 960 

Total traffic warnings issued  2,889 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Seatbelt violation 505 

Speeding 241 

Operating while suspended 241 

Operating while intoxicated 172 

Operating after revocation-criminal 30 

Operating after revocation-forfeiture 116 

Operating with no valid license 85 

Open intoxicants in motor vehicle 4 

Hit and run violations 14 

Failure to yield right-of-way 23 

Failure to obey sign, signal, or officer 64 

Insurance violations 794 

Ignition interlock violations 14 

Reckless driving 0 

Knowingly fleeing an officer 5 

All other violations 163 

Total traffic citations issued 2,471 

60 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 20 

 
Parking Tickets 
 
Baraboo Police Department has been utilizing Clancy software and ticket writers since 
2015. This has allowed for more efficient writing and tracking of parking tickets, as well 
as increased revenue as more payments are collected. Since 2015, additional ticket 
printers have been added to aid in the efficiency of ticket writing. 
 

Total parking tickets issued 3210 

 
 
 
 
 
Traffic Crashes 
 
The rate of traffic crashes has been following a generally steady trend from 2012 
through 2019.  The annual rate had been about 297 from 2012-2019.  There has been a 
general downward trend in accidents from 2016-2019. The number of injury accidents 
decreased 6% from 2018 to 2019. 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53 57 54 63

4

52
34

17

332
314

279 279
312

277
276

268

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Chart Title

Crashes Injury Crashes All

61 of 74



Baraboo Police 2019 Annual Report – Page 21 

 Use of Force 
 
We complete critical reviews of every force application whenever it is more than simply 
overcoming resistance.  These reviews are conducted by an officer’s peer who is an 
experienced officer and trainer in the force option used, with oversight by a Command 
Officer.   
 
For example, when a patrol officer uses a Taser, the force application is evaluated by 
another patrol officer who is trained as a Taser instructor.  It is then reviewed by the 
Lieutenant of Police.  This helps us ensure that the reviews are valid from the eyes of a 
practitioner and an administrator.  
 
Individual reviews and the annual summary are used to help identity individual and 
department-wide training needs, equipment shortcomings, or policy deficiencies. 
 
The following summarizes our reportable uses of force this year.  In instances where 
several force options were used, such as an empty-hand technique (e.g., compliance 
hold) and use of a Taser, the incident is reported under the higher-level option however 
all options are documented.   

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
In many of these instances, an officer threatened to use force, such as pointing a 

Taser at a suspect, and achieved compliance without actually applying the force 
technique.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
The nature of the calls that precipitated force applications varied widely, but the most 

common cases were general disturbance calls. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Taser 5 

Empty hand techniques 19 

Firearm 12 

Vehicular pursuit 2 

Total reportable uses of force  38 

Threatened force 16 

Applied force 22 

Total reportable uses of force  38 

Disturbance 15 

Suicidal or other mental health 3 

Operating while intoxicated 0 

Warrant service 4 

All other 16 

Total reportable uses of force 38 

62 of 74



Finance/Personnel Committee–Dennis Thurow Committee Room, #205 February 11, 2020
Members Present: Petty, Thurow, Kent
Absent:
Others Present: Mayor Palm, Adm. Downing, E. Truman, B. Zeman, C. Haggard, T. Pinion, Kevin Vodak, Sean
McNevin, members of the press

Call to Order –Ald. Petty called the meeting to order at 6:15 p.m. noting compliance with the Open Meeting Law.
Moved by Kent, seconded by Thurow to approve the minutes of January 28, 2020 and carried unanimously. Moved
by Kent, seconded by Thurow to approve the agenda and carried unanimously.

Action Items
a) Accounts Payable – Moved by Kent, seconded by Thurow to recommend to Council for approval of the

accounts payable for $4,388,355.42. Motion carried unanimously.

b) Review and recommendation on request for discount of building permit fee for Jack Young Middle
School project Adm. Downing explained that because of an unexpected expense to extend a fire hydrant, the
project is currently $60,000 over budget. The School Board came to the City and requested that the building
permit not exceed $25,000 of the estimated permit fee of $34,000. Adm. Downing presented the following
things to consider:

o The project has not been bid yet therefore it is unknown if the $60,000 estimate will actually be
$60,000 over budget

o If the City approved the discounted building permit, could the City issue a receivable to the School
District and ask them to budget for the remaining $9,000 in fiscal year 2021

o The High School paid the full square footage permit fee, no discount was given
o Staff is concerned with the precedence this decision will set with other developers and their future

projects

K. Vodak noted that while he appreciates the concern with the precedence being set, the School District is a
quasi-governmental tax exempt agency. As for the $9,000 as a payable, the money is from the bond and not
out of the general obligation fund.

S. McNevin stated that they approached the City because the $60,000 fire hydrant on the backside of the
building, was unforeseen cost in the project estimate. They were looking for ways to adjust the budget for the
construction to accommodate for this. The building project has both major and minor remodels for a total
estimated project cost of $42M. He explained that they cannot go over budget with this project, they don’t
have the capacity of exceeding the bond; they will have to scale down on the final classroom fixtures.

Adm. Downing noted that City Engineer T. Pinion had mentioned delay payment for the permit and he could
work on authorization to proceed without payment until the bids come in. T. Pinion reminded the Committee
that this has been requested in the past, typically it was more in line with impact fees. T. Pinion does not recall
ever reducing the permit fee.

Ald. Kent notes that it’s very worrisome that they are concerned about being over budget already at this point
in the project.

Ald. Petty would consider them getting the permit and hold off on the costs; however, to reduce the permit by
$9,000, this is money that could be used by the City for various items.

S. McNevin requests that City Engineer T. Pinon sit down with the general contractor and take a look at the
numbers and see if there is a way to mitigate the cost this way; not necessarily cutting the cost of the permit.
T. Pinion is willing to work with the architect and refine the numbers to be charged as accurate as possible.

No action taken. The building permit will be issued and T. Pinion will work with their architect to determine
the permit fee. The School District will pay the permit fee based on T. Pinion’s understanding of the project.



Informational Items – None.

Adjournment – Moved by Kent, seconded by Thurow and carried to adjourn at 6:37pm.
Brenda Zeman, City Clerk



63 of 74



Administrative Committee February 3, 2020
Present: Alderpersons John Alt, John Ellington and Heather Kierzek
Absent: None
Also Present: Mayor, Mike Palm; City Administrator, Kennie Downing; Finance Director, Cynthia Haggard; Police Chief,

Mark Schauf; City Attorney, Emily Truman; and City Clerk, Brenda Zeman.
Citizen Present: Styles Grant, Robert Hasse, Elizabeth Hudson and Justin Mortimer

The meeting was called to order by Chairman John Alt at 8:15AM CST., with roll call and noting compliance with the Open Meetings
Law.

Moved by Ellington to approve the minutes of January 6, 2020, seconded by Kierzek and unanimously carried.

Motion by Kierzek to approve amended agenda, seconded by Ellington and unanimously carried.

Review and recommendation to the Council –Operator’s Licenses.
Chief Schauf mentioned there was nothing precluding the issuance of licenses to Brittney Saxby and Vicki Weyh and recommended
approval.

Motion to recommend to approve and move on to Council the Operator’s Licenses for Brittney Saxby and Vicki Weyh by Ellington,
seconded by Kierzek and unanimously carried.

In relation to Styles Grant’s Operator’s License, Chief Schauf stated in order for there to be a denial, there has to be a Nexus. The
Nexus has to be very strong and compelling. This individual is on probation not allowing him to sell alcohol. He cannot violate his
Department of Corrections (DOC) rules. Mr. Grant submitted a letter from his DOC Probation Officer as support for him being
issued an Operator’s License. Chief Schauf took the letter and will reach out to the Probation Officer before the next Council
meeting. Chief Schauf was in favor of a conditional approval.

Motion by Kierzek Motion to recommend a conditional approval to allow the Chief to complete his investigation, seconded by
Ellington and unanimously carried.

Review and recommendation to Council for excessive household animals –Robert Hasse & Elizabeth Hudson.
Cynthia Haggard began by stating that letters were sent to adjacent property owners giving them notice of the meeting today. An
adjacent neighbor, Justin Mortimer, stated he didn’t have a problem with the three dogs. Alderperson Alt noted that Mr. Mortimer
had concerns with an aggressive dog, but that Mr. Mortimer did not have an issue with the multiple dogs.

Chief Schauf mentioned that there were two very different specific issues: One with multiple dogs and the other with dogs at large.
With the later, the Police Department will address that section of the code, as needed.

Motion to recommend to approve and move on to Council the waiver for excessive household animals by Kierzek, seconded by
Ellington and unanimously carried.

Review and recommend adopting a Meeting Room Reservation Policy
Chief Schauf stressed the importance of having this Policy as the demand for meeting space for this building has increased. This
Policy addresses security when Civic groups are present. This policy also protects against the potential of groups preaching
messages that go against City intrinsic values. In summary, this policy addresses the safety of the employees here at the City and
the potential for liability.

Motion to approve and move on to Council the Meeting Room Reservation Policy by Ellington, seconded by Kierzek and
unanimously carried.

Member comments
The next meeting will be Wednesday, February 26, 2020 at 8:15AM CST. Meeting location will be 101 South Boulevard.

Motion to adjourn by Kierzek, seconded by Ellington and unanimously carried. Meeting adjourned at 8:16AM CST.

Respectfully submitted,
Cynthia Haggard, Finance Director

64 of 74



S:\Minutes\Public Safety Committee\2020 Minutes\01-27-2020 Minutes.doc 

Minutes of the Public Safety Committee Meeting – January 27, 2020 
 
Members Present:  Phil Wedekind, Tom Kolb, and Mike Plautz. Others Present:  Kennie Downing, Mayor Palm, Mark 
Schauf, Kevin Stieve, Emily Truman, Tom Pinion, Wade Peterson, Tony Gilman, Misty Muter, Chris Sommerfield, and Kris 
Jackson. 
 
Call to Order - Committee Chairman Phil Wedekind called the meeting to order at 1:00 P.M. at Baraboo City  
Service Center. Compliance with the Open Meeting Law was noted. It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to approve the 
agenda as posted. Motion carried unanimously. It was moved by Plautz, seconded by Kolb to approve the minutes of the 
December 9, 2019 meeting. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
New Business 
a. Review and recommend approval of the proposed Water Meter Reading Agreement with the Village of West Baraboo – 

Peterson said that after a few conversations, West Baraboo came back to the table with more reasonable requests. He said 

that their Attorney and the City Attorney have both looked at the agreement, and added a few small things, and they are 

waiting on one little part from Census, we have the verbal on that. Peterson said that the City is ready; West Baraboo still 

has quite a bit that they have to do. Attorney Truman said that she has no concerns. It was moved by Kolb, seconded by 

Plautz pending approval from the PFC. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

b. Review and possible recommendation to amend Chapter 5, Fire Department, of the Baraboo Municipal Code and to update 

the Official Fee Schedule for the corresponding permits – Chief Stieve said that this was brought back to the Committee for 

fees for opening burning. Attorney Truman said that this was recommended to move forward at the last meeting; however, in 

between Alderperson Plautz requested that it be brought back to the Committee for additional discussion regarding taking 

out the provision in Chapter 5.4 for Opening Burning.  She said that the small changes that were requested have been 

incorporated. During further discussion, it was found that the new version was not incorporation in to the packet with the 

changes that were made. Plautz said that when someone makes the initial fee for the inspection, would there be a set date for 

the burn. Chief Stieve said that a date range could be incorporated with the permit. Plautz then asked if homeowners burn 

their leaves more than one time, would they have to pay $50.00 each time. Truman said that it is currently set up to require a 

fee for each burn. Plautz felt that the initial fee would include the inspection, but did not feel that a second burn would 

require an inspection. Stieve said that the inspection would include travel time to the location and making sure that they meet 

the entire requirement for the current ordinance. He said that if they cannot do the burn in the range of the dates given, the 

bottom line would be that they would have to get another permit. He said what he would like to do it get rid of open burning 

all together, with the exception of recreational fires, and special circumstances. He feels that there are services available, 

such as compost site, and the City leaf pickup that people would not need to burn. Kolb feels that the fee should be kept at 

$50.00 per burn. The process of the permit application was then explained to the Committee. Plautz moved to recommend 

amending Chapter 5 of the Fire Department Municipal Code to update the Official Fee Schedule to reflect $50 for bon fires 

and opening burning permits. Kolb seconded, motion carried unanimously. 

 

c. Review and possible recommendation to amend the Official Fee Schedule for certain Fire Department responses – Chief 

Stieve state that in the packet there was a sample of a fee for traffic crash response.  He said that currently the Department is 

working from of State Statute and insurance companies are having an issue with that. He said that the department is called 

out on crashes often for injuries, and sometimes just general cleanup. He said that he is looking for the Committee’s feeling 

regarding building a fee for crash responses, possibly a tiered response, giving the residents a bit more of a break than non-

residents.  He said that he has received an inquiry from one of the funeral homes for lift assists with a deceased person. He 

said a second fee that he is asking for the Committee’s support on is a technical rescue fee, more so for the Towns. After a 

lengthy discussion, Kolb moved, seconded by Plautz to recommend postponing for a later meeting and direct staff to 

continue working on this. Motion carried unanimously. 

  

d. Consideration of the Baraboo Fire Department’s Apparatus Replacement Schedule – Chief Stieve presented the Committee 

the background. He said that Finance Director is working on laying out all capital equipment. He said that if the Committee 

would like to review the information and wait for Haggard to get all City capital equipment finished, it may be an easier 

process to go through, and the Committee may want more data than is provided. It was the consensus of the Committee to 

bring it back when Haggard has the citywide capital equipment finished. 

 

e. Review and possible recommendation of new City-owned street lighting installed as part of the DOT’s upcoming STH 33 

(8th St/8th Ave) reconstruction project – Pinion presented the background to the Committee. The DOT has asked if the 

Village or City would be interested in installing new streetlights. He said the lights would be City-owned as opposed to 

Alliant owned and would be 100% funded by the local share. He said that if the Committee would like to pursue this, he 

65 of 74



S:\Minutes\Public Safety Committee\2020 Minutes\01-27-2020 Minutes.doc 

could put together budgetary figures for the next meeting. It was consensus of the Committee to have Pinion consult with the 

DOT for a cost estimate.  

 

f. Review and possible recommendation to approve a request for a Shared Lateral Agreement for temporary sewer and water 

lateral connection for a new professional office building at 908 8th Street for Misty Muter – Pinion presented the background 

for this request. He said that the suggestion of staff would be to postpone the installation of the new lateral until the 

installation of the reconstruction project, it would still be at the property owner’s expense, but for the sake of promoting 

economic development with a new building on the corridor, trying to find an alternative. Mister has drafted an agreement 

with the neighbor, American Family Insurance who has agreed to allow them to connect to their lateral on a temporary basis. 

Kolb moved, Plautz seconded to allow a temporary connection to the neighbor’s lateral with a positive recommendation to 

Council until the reconstruction of Highway 33 is done. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

g. Review and approval of monthly Billing Adjustments/Credits for Sewer and Water Customers for December 2019 and 

January 2020 – It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to approve the adjustments/Credits for December, 2019 and 

January 2020 as presented. Motion carried unanimously. 

 

Information Items 

a. First draft of proposed updates to the Refuse and Recycling Ordinance to reflect current regulations – Street Superintendent 

Gilman presented the background to the Committee. Gilman stated in an effort to eliminate workers compensation claims 

and increase the efficiency, we have to start regulating and cleaning up the cart sizes and extra garbage and recycling outside 

of the carts. Gilman said that the 96-gallon carts would become the standard cart.  Pinion said as far as an implementation 

date it was decided that it should be in the Spring-Summer Newsletter. Cart stickers were then discussed.  Gilman said that 

the 35-gallon carts are too small and do not fit into the claws of the trucks correctly. It was the consensus of the Committee 

to eliminate the 35-gallon carts.  

 

Reports 

a. Utility Superintendent’s Report – Peterson said the department will be starting up with the River crossing and the Oak Street 

Booster Station. He said that he has met with the Engineers with for the Highway 33 project. He said that U.S. Cellular is 

looking to do a significant upgrade to their equipment on the County A Water Tower. He said that water mains, laterals, and 

hydrants would be replaced as part of the Mound Street project.  

 

b. Street Superintendent’s Report – Gilman said that Travis Steinke came on board December 30 as mechanic. He said we are 

accepting applications for a semi-skilled position to replaced employee that left. Gilman then gave the salt inventory report. 

He said that the department is helping Parks Department with tree removal. The Depot Street building has been removed.  

 

c. Police Chief’s Report – Chief Schauf said that the department is actively recruiting for officers, as there have been three 

officers that have left or will be leaving. He has been working closely with the City Attorney regarding deferred 

prosecutions for kids receiving truancy citations. He said the department has an officer that participated in the Sauk County 

Drug Court, as a member of CJCC for Sauk County, and their National Conference is out in California, the CJCC is picking 

up all the cost, we just need permission to send him. The department is looking to bump up the bond for alternative side 

parking. 

 

d. Fire Chief’s Report – Chief Stieve said total members is 34, one is on military leave. One significant thing the department 

has done has been helping the Al Ringling Theater because they lost their fire curtain; therefore, they have been on fire 

watch with the big performances. He said that the wages and any other costs associated with this is charged back to Al 

Ringling. He said training program with the Assistant Fire Chief has improved. He said two people were hired in January 

and two more are in different stages of the hiring process. He said that the Department is helping the County with some 

training on basic office safety and fire training. Stieve said the Department is PFAS free. A short discussion regarding a 

River Water Rescue program.  

 

AJOURNMENT – It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to adjourn at 2:26 p.m. Motion carried.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Phil Wedekind, Chairman 
 

66 of 74



Baraboo Economic Development Commission
Meeting Minutes
February 6, 2020

I. Call to Meeting to Order and Note Compliance with Open Meeting Law
Vice-Chair Jim Bowers called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM at the Baraboo Municipal Building, room
205, 101 South Blvd., Baraboo, WI. The meeting was noticed in conformance with Wisconsin State
Statues regarding open meetings.

II. Roll Call
Present: Bowers, Ayar, Johnson, Mueller, Palm, Reppen, Taylor, Walczak, Wastlund
Absent: Alt, Caflisch, Ryan, White
Other: Kennie Downing, Patrick Cannon

III. Approve Agenda
Motion to approve the agenda as presented
Johnson (1); Taylor (2)
Aye: All via voice vote
Nay: None

IV. Approve Minutes
Motion to approve the minutes for December 5, 2019 and January 2, 2020 with minor adjustments
Johnson (1); Reppen (2)
Aye: All via voice vote
Nay: None

V. Public Comment
No one from the public wished to speak

VI. Old Business
a. Updates on Development Activities

 Mayor Palm updated on the following:
o The State DOT will be reconstruction sidewalk ramps on HWY 113 & 136 in 2020 &

2021.
o He served on a Review Committee for State Road projects. They had more

applications than funding.
o Bike Wisconsin will be in Baraboo in June. They will be staying at the Civic Center
o The Chamber held an update on the local economy. There are over 1235 businesses

with in the zip code
o The Mayor also attended an economic update put on by the Department of Revenue
o The City has placed the other members of the Baraboo Ambulance District of its

intention to explore other service options.

 Mr. Johnson that Ag prices are realistic and that the trade agreements will not start until later
in the year.

 Mr. Taylor indicated that the banking industry is very strong at this time.

 Ms. Wastlund indicated that the CDA has granted a loan to the Al. Ringling Brewing Company.

 Ms. Mueller gave an update on the School remodeling project.

 Mr. Reppen indicated that the County has several issues that they are addressing.

 Dr. Ayar indicated that over all Higher Education is struggling with enrollment

 Mr. Bowers indicated that nothing significant has happened in the Village. He also indicated
that a fundraiser was help for the homeless shelter.

67 of 74



VII. New Business
a. Establishing 2020 Goals for BEDC

The Mayor updated the Board on the areas of housing and what vacant parcels are available within the
City.

The question of changing to bi-monthly meetings was approached and will be included on the agenda
for the March meeting.

VII. Update Partner Presentation Schedule
No additional comments were provided.

VIII. Commissioner and City Staff comments
No additional comments were provided.

IX. Adjournment
Motion to adjourn the meeting was made at 6:49 pm.
Johnson (1); Taylor (2)
Aye: All via voice vote
Nay: None

Jim Bowers Patrick Cannon
Vice-Chairperson Recorder

68 of 74



       

 

Minutes 

Baraboo District Ambulance Commission 

 

Call to Order & Roll Call 

• The December 4, 2019 meeting of the Baraboo District Ambulance Service Commission was 

called to order by Dahlke at 7:00 pm.  

• Commissioners present: Dave Dahlke, Heather Kierzek, Dave Kitkowski, Robin Meier, Darlene 

Otto, Joel Petty, Randy Puttkamer, Tim Stieve, Terry Turnquist, and Phil Wedekind 

• Also present were:  Attorney Maffei, Chief Sechler, Deputy Chief Rago, Captain Johnson, 

Captain Koepp, Snow, Vande Hei, and City Administrator Kennie Downing 

• Dahlke confirmed that the meeting had been posted in compliance with the Open Meeting Law. 

• The agenda was adopted with a motion made by Wedekind, seconded by Stieve.  Voice vote, all 

ayes.  Motion carried. 

 

Approval of Previous Minutes 

• A motion to approve the October 23, 2019 minutes was made by Kitkowski (with correction of 

his name spelling) seconded by Petty.  Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 

 

Public Invited to Speak 

• None 

 

Reports 

1. Legal Council Report – No report. 

 

2. Treasurer’s Report – Meier reported on the Financials, and stated that all the bills were paid 

through the month of November (which included three payrolls) without using the Line of Credit 

or any Reserve funds.  Though no additional reserve funds have been used, there have not been 

any additional funds paid back to the LGIP accounts.  Meier stated that the A/R is still high, 

though when the 2019 write-off amounts are applied, that will bring the A/R number down.  The 

revenue year-to-date is at $4.9 million, which is under the estimated YTD budget.  Meier stated 

that she reviewed a number of the policies that had been given to the Commission, and that 

several of the policies related to finances and the budget needed to be updated, as a couple of 

them are a number of years old, and need to be updated.  Meier shared that she had attended the 

last Baraboo City council meeting, and it was stated at that meeting that the special audit report 

will be made public on December 17, at a special council meeting.  The intent is for the report to 

be given to everyone at the same time.  Maffei and Dahlke both stated that was not the 

agreement that had been agreed to, between the City of Baraboo and Baraboo EMS.  Rather, an 

initial / preliminary report was to be sent to the Commission President, Attorney, and Chief, for 

them to review, with the final report to be shared at a future meeting.  Dahlke stated that he had 

sent an email to Ed Geick regarding the release of the report, and that he has not yet heard back 

from him. 

 

 

 

69 of 74



       

 

Minutes 

Baraboo District Ambulance Commission 

 

3. President’s Report – Dahlke stated that he publicly wanted to thank Commissioners Petty and 

Sloan for their support at the various City finance and council meetings, in advocating for the 

agreed upon $30 per capita rate that the Commission had agreed to, and approved at the Annual 

Member’s meeting.  Dahlke questioned the rationale of the City attempting to hold back part of 

the tax levy, to initially only paying the equivalent of a $27 per capita rate.  Dahlke asked what 

the benchmark would be to release the additional $3.00 per capita rate for their portion of the tax 

levy?  Dahlke explained that one of the reasons that the reserve funds are low is that the City 

forced the hand of Baraboo EMS by dropping the per capita rate down to $6.28 several years 

ago.  Dahlke also stated that the memo that had been sent out by Ed Geick to the City Council 

the previous month was out of bounds, and was a personal attack on several of the Officers / 

Management team at Baraboo EMS.  Dahlke reiterated that the Baraboo EMS Budget for 2020 

was based on a $30.00 per capita rate that had been agreed to and unanimously approved at the 

October Member’s meeting.  Reference to the Bylaws was made, that describes the payment of 

the tax levy by the municipalities to the ambulance service.  Meier brought up an inter-

governmental agreement on how the payment should be made.  It was asked when the tax levies 

are paid to Baraboo EMS.  Sechler stated that the Townships and the Village typically pay the 

full amount billed to them in January.  The City has traditionally paid half of the payment in 

January / February, and the remaining half is then paid in July / August.  Maffei reiterated that a 

copy of the special audit report should be sent to the Commissioners prior to the public meeting.  

A meeting notice should be posted by the City of Baraboo.  Dahlke also noted that depending on 

when/if the City responds to the Commission’s concerns and questions about the proposed 

Special Audit presentation by Baker Tilly, scheduled for December 17 at the City Council 

chambers, BDAS may need to hold a special Commission meeting prior to that meeting, to 

discuss the report.        

 

4. Chief’s Report – As presented in the written report. 

 

Consent Agenda 

1. Approve check details and online payments for October 13, 2019 – November 23, 2019 in the 

amount of $156,738.99.  A motion to approve as presented was made by Petty, seconded by 

Turnquist.  Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 

 

New Business 

1. Vote for new Commission Secretary.  Petty nominated Stieve, seconded by Meier.  Petty 

motioned to close nominations, seconded by Meier.  Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried.  A 

motion was made by Petty, seconded by Otto to approve Stieve as the new Commission 

Secretary, for the term held by Sloan until April, 2020.  Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried.   

 

2. Discussion on the purchase of the new AFG Bariatric ambulance.  Sechler stated that that new 

Bariatric ambulance, being built by Demers as part of the Assistance to Firefighter’s Grant 

(AFG) was due to be delivered in December.  The total amount for the ambulance is 

70 of 74



       

 

Minutes 

Baraboo District Ambulance Commission 

 

$230,951.00.  The Federal portion of the Grant is $219,048.00, and Baraboo EMS will be 

responsible for $11,903.00.  Sechler asked the Commission if they preferred to use funds from 

the Operations / checking account, or if they wished to move funds from the Vehicle reserve 

fund.  Meier stated that it had been budgeted in 2019 to transfer funds from the Vehicle reserve 

to cover that expense.  It was moved by Meier, seconded by Petty, to move the needed funds 

from the Vehicle reserve to the Operations / checking account, to cover the portion of the 

Bariatric ambulance that Baraboo EMS is responsible for.  Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 

 
3. Discussion on the sale of Bariatric rig 574.  Sechler explained that with the new Bariatric rig 

arriving, the plan was to sell the current ambulance, which is a 2003 Freightliner FL 60.  He 

stated that the options for selling the rig included: (1) advertising sale of the unit to employees 

and other interested parties that might be interested, and then having a blind bidding process; (2) 

placing the vehicle on the Wisconsin Surplus online site; (3) offering to sell it to Beloit Fire 

Department, as they were potentially in need of a Bariatric rig.  After discussion, it was moved 

by Meier, seconded by Kitkowski, to offer it to Beloit Fire Department for $7,500, with the 

ability to accept a counter offer of no lower than $5,000.  If that sale does not work out, then it 

should be posted on Wisconsin Surplus, with a reserve of no less than $5,000.  Voice vote, all 

ayes.  Motion carried. 

 
4. Sechler presented the proposed policy for the Assistance to Firefighter’s Grant (AFG) related to 

property, vehicle, and equipment management and record keeping.  Stieve stated that in the first 

paragraph, the phrase “a reasonable assurance such” should be removed.  Stieve also stated that 

in the second sentence of the second to last paragraph that the words “records and” should be 

added.  It was moved by Wedekind, seconded by Stieve, to approve the AFG policy related to 

property, vehicle, and equipment management and record keeping, with the suggested changes.  

Voice vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 

 
5. Sechler presented the proposed policy for Continuing Education and the Training Request form.  

The Commission directed that the following items should be changed:  (1) Delete items related 

to Human Resources.  (2) Reference the criteria needed to determine the ability to approve 

requested training.  (3) Define management.  (4) Reword the section about “eligible for 

reimbursement”.  Stieve asked if the Commission should be part of the approval process, 

regarding out-of-state training.  Dahlke gave some examples as to how training is approved at his 

workplace, for in-state, and out-of-state training.  Petty asked if there is capitation for an 

employee that might take classes all the time, versus another employee that doesn’t take any 

classes.  It was indicated that the Training Center staff would keep track of those items, in order 

to ensure as much training could be approved for the greatest amount of employees.  It was 

directed to bring the policy back with the revisions, for additional review by the Commission. 

 
 

 

 

71 of 74



       

 

Minutes 

Baraboo District Ambulance Commission 

 

Commissioner Comments & Future Agenda Items 

• Meier asked if there should be a meeting scheduled prior to 12/17.  Dahlke stated that if one was 

needed, that a Special meeting could be called.  There will be a meeting noticed for that evening, 

if needed. 

• Dahlke wished everyone a Merry Christmas, and a Happy New Year.  He also thanked the crews 

for their service, especially over the upcoming Holidays. 

•  Please mark your calendars for the next Commission meeting, which will be the following: 

o January 22, 2020 

o February 26, 2020 

 

Adjournment 

• Motion to adjourn by Turnquist, seconded by Wedekind at 8:00 pm. Voice vote, all ayes.  

Motion carried. 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

Dana Sechler, Chief / EMS Director 

Baraboo District Ambulance Service 

72 of 74



       

 
Minutes 

Baraboo District Ambulance Service 

Special Meeting of the Members 

 

 

Call to Order & Roll Call 

• The August 28, 2018 Special Members meeting of the Baraboo District Ambulance Service was 
called to order by the Town of Baraboo at 8:56 pm. 

• Members present:  City of Baraboo (Petty), Town of Baraboo (Puttkamer), Town of Excelsior (Krueger), 
Town of Fairfield (Otto), Town of Greenfield (Turnquist), Town of Sumpter (Meier) 

• Also present were:  St. Clare Hospital (Kitkowski), Sloan, Stieve, Wedekind, Maffei, Sechler, J. Rago, 
Johnson, Koepp, Larson, N. Rago, Seefeld, Snow, Vande Hei, R. Willer 

• The Town of Baraboo noted that the meeting had been posted in compliance with the Open 
Meeting Law. 

 
Adoption of Agenda   

• The agenda was adopted by a motion made by the City of Baraboo, seconded by the Town of Greenfield.   
Roll call vote, all ayes.  Motion carried. 
 

Approval of Previous Minutes 

• Motion to approve the minutes from the Annual Meeting of the Members on October 24, 2018 made by 
the City of Baraboo, seconded by the Town of Excelsior.  All ayes, Motion carried. 

 
Public Invited to Speak   

• No public comments 
 
Reports & Correspondence   

•  None 
 
New Business 

• A recommendation was forwarded from the Commission, to approve a Line of Credit with Community 
First Bank.  A motion was made by the Town of Sumpter, seconded by the Town of Greenfield, to 
approve a Line of Credit with Community First Bank, under the terms given, for $500,000.00.  An 
additional meeting of the Member’s will need to be scheduled, to approve any funds to be drawn on.  The 
authorized signers will be the Commission President, Secretary, and/or Treasurer. 
Roll call vote:  City of Baraboo – Aye   
  Town of Baraboo – Aye 
  Town of Excelsior – Aye  
  Town of Fairfield – Aye 
  Town of Geenfield – Aye 
  Town of Sumpter – Aye 
   
All ayes.  Motion carried. 
 

Member Comments & Future Agenda Items   

• None 
 

Adjournment   

• Motion to adjourn made by City of Baraboo, seconded by Town of Excelsior at 9:01 pm.   Voice 
vote, all ayes.  Motion carried.  
      Respectfully Submitted, 

  
 
       Dana Sechler, Chief / EMS Director 
       Baraboo District Ambulance Service  

73 of 74



BarabooBID M eetingM inutes
2/19/20

P resent: M em bers: Brunker,S telling,Yount,S loan,M arklein,W ickus,Fay,Kolb

P residentFay called them eetingtoorderat5:46 p.m .

ApprovalofDecem ber2019 m inutes: W ickus/S telling
AdoptionofAgenda: Kolb/S telling

P resident: N one
S ecretary: N one
T reasurer: P lanstom eetw ithCity FinanceDirectortodiscussadm incharges
Appearances: Garlandshavebeenrem oved
BusinessDevelopm ent: N one
Finance: W illm eetw ithCity FinanceDirector
P arking: M uralisinprogress
P rom otions: P lanstom eet

O ld Business

Brandingupdate: T hebrandingcom m itteehascom m issioned som eonetodraftarticlesand
takepicturesaboutourarea.

N ew Business

1. T abled budgetam endm entpendingm eetingw ithCity FinanceDirectorform ore
inform ation

2. Approvaloffinancialreports-W illdiscussany futurepolicy toapprovefinancialreports
3. ApprovalofFundsfor2020 BrandingInitiative$5,000 toBACC

a. M otiontom ovefundsfrom reservesandpay invoiceS telling/S loan
4. AnnualR eport-Com m itteeChairsrem indedtodraftreports
5. Com m itteestatusupdate

a. YountonBusinessDevelopm entandP arking
b. Kolb onP arkingandBusinessDevelopm ent
c. M arkleinChairBusinessDevelopm ent

6. DiscussionofopenBID retailerseat-R eceivedinterest
7. ApprovalofVouchers:

a. BarabooAreaCham berofCom m erceforBrandingInitiative $5,000

Total: $5,000

Approved: S loan/Yount

M otiontoadjournat6:36 p.m .by Fay/Kolb

74 of 74


